ENNISMORE SMALLER COMPANIES PLC
(An Investment Company With Variable Capital)

Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2017

ENNISMORE SMALLER COMPANIES PLC
CONTENTS
Page
Company Details

1

Summary Information

2

Directors’ Report

7

Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

14

Depositary Report

15

Investment Manager’s Report (Unaudited)
Overview
Ennismore European Smaller Companies Fund
Ennismore Global Equity Fund
Outlook
Investment Philosophy and Process

16
16
24
26
26

Independent Auditor’s Report

29

Statement of Comprehensive Income

32

Statement of Financial Position

33

Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares

35

Statement of Cash Flows

36

Notes to the Financial Statements

37

Portfolio of Investments (Audited)

73

Portfolio Changes (Unaudited)

98

Unaudited Notes to the Financial Statements

102

ENNISMORE SMALLER COMPANIES PLC
COMPANY DETAILS
DIRECTORS
Nicholas Durlacher (British) (Chairman)*
Lars Gårdö (Swedish)*
Matthew Minch (Irish)*
Geoff Oldfield (British)
Paul McNaughton (Irish)*
Andrew Blair (British)

REGISTERED OFFICE
Georges Court
54-62 Townsend Street
Dublin 2
Ireland
Registered Number: 294512

INVESTMENT MANAGER
Ennismore Fund Management Limited
Kensington Cloisters
5 Kensington Church Street
London W8 4LD
United Kingdom

REGISTRAR AND ADMINISTRATOR
Northern Trust International Fund Administration
Services (Ireland) Limited
Georges Court
54-62 Townsend Street
Dublin 2
Ireland

Telephone: +44 (0)20 7368 4200
E-Mail: es@ennismorefunds.com

Telephone: +353 1 542 2000

DEPOSITARY
Northern Trust Fiduciary Services (Ireland) Limited
Georges Court
54-62 Townsend Street
Dublin 2
Ireland

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
KPMG
Chartered Accountants, Statutory Audit Firm
90 South Mall
Cork
Ireland

SECRETARY
Northern Trust International Fund Administration
Services (Ireland) Limited
Georges Court
54-62 Townsend Street
Dublin 2
Ireland

LEGAL ADVISORS
McCann FitzGerald
Riverside One
Sir John Rogerson’s Quay
Dublin 2
Ireland
0

REPRESENTATIVE OF THE FUND IN
SWITZERLAND
Bastion Partners Office SA
Route de Chêne 61A
1208 Geneva
Switzerland

PAYING AGENT OF THE FUND IN
SWITZERLAND
Banque Heritage SA
Route de Chêne 61A
1208 Geneva
Switzerland

* Independent Directors

1

ENNISMORE SMALLER COMPANIES PLC
SUMMARY INFORMATION
ENNISMORE EUROPEAN SMALLER COMPANIES FUND PERFORMANCE
Fund
NAV2
GBP %

Year

Fund
NAV2
EUR%

HSBC Index3
GBP %

HSBC
Index3
EUR%

MSCI
Index4
Loc Curr %

2017

9.6

22.4

5.4

17.7

13.1

2016

14.5

19.2

(1.2)

2.9

7.2

2015

9.7

15.6

15.5

21.7

4.9

2014

6.4

(1.8)

14.0

5.2

4.7

2013

26.6

35.5

23.4

32.2

21.6

2012

8.4

20.2

11.6

23.6

15.6

2011

9.8

(20.7)

12.6

(18.6)

(9.3)

2010

18.4

21.9

22.8

25.9

6.8

2009

(1.6)

47.7

7.0

59.7

27.7

2008

(5.7)

(36.8)

(28.3)

(51.5)

(38.9)

2007

9.1

3.1

0.1

(5.5)

6.0

2006

8.4

30.5

10.6

33.2

19.1

2005

30.4

32.6

34.4

36.3

24.9

2004

23.5

24.6

22.9

24.4

12.2

2003

29.3

48.8

19.6

37.5

19.8

2002

6.2

(19.8)

(0.3)

(24.8)

(29.4)

2001

1.5

(18.3)

5.3

(15.6)

(16.4)

2000

35.6

(3.3)

34.3

(4.7)

(2.2)

19991

49.0

27.2

65.2

42.1

29.8

1201.0

549.7

921.5

407.9

124.8

1

1999 – 2017
1

2

3

Since inception on 27/1/99 Source: Administrator, Net Asset Value, net income reinvested for GBP A shares Euromoney (formerly HSBC) Smaller European Total Return Index, Source:
Bloomberg 4 MSCI Europe, local currencies, total return Source: Bloomberg. All performance figures net of fees.

ENNISMORE GLOBAL EQUITY FUND PERFORMANCE
Fund
NAV2
GBP %

Year

Fund
NAV2
EUR %

Fund
NAV2
CHF %

2017

1.3

1.3

(2.2)

5.4

2016

6.0

5.8

8.0

6.5

7.4

7.2

5.6

12.2

1

2016 – 2017
1

Fund
NAV2
GBP A %

Since inception on 3/10/16

2

Source: Administrator, Net Asset Value. All performance figures net of fees.

FUND DETAILS
Ennismore Smaller Companies plc (the “Company”) was established on 8 October 1998, as an umbrella
type investment company with segregated liability between sub-funds and with variable capital
incorporated in Ireland in which different funds may be created from time to time. It is authorised in
Ireland by the Central Bank of Ireland (the “Central Bank”) as an investment company pursuant to the
European Communities (Undertakings for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities) Regulations
2011 (“the UCITS Regulations”) and the Central Bank (Supervision and Enforcement) Act 2013 (Section
48(1)) (Undertakings for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities) Regulations 2015 (the “Central
Bank UCITS Regulations”).
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ENNISMORE SMALLER COMPANIES PLC
SUMMARY INFORMATION (continued…)
FUND DETAILS (continued)
The Company has two sub-funds, the Ennismore European Smaller Companies Fund and the Ennismore
Global Equity Fund (each individually the “Fund” and collectively the “Funds”). The Ennismore
European Smaller Companies Fund launched on 27 January 1999 with the issue of a single class of shares
(GBP “A” shares). In January 2011 three additional share classes were issued: GBP “B” shares, EUR “A”
shares and EUR “B” shares. The Ennismore Global Equity Fund launched on 3 October 2016 with the
issue of four share classes: EUR, GBP, GBP A and CHF shares.
The fee rates and liquidity terms are the same for all share classes. The classes differ in that the
performance fees are based on performance in the class currency and that the performance fee for “A”
shares is calculated at share class level. For the other share classes an equalisation method is used.
The GBP A shares in Ennismore European Smaller Companies Fund were listed on the Irish Stock
Exchange until 26 June 2017 when these shares became delisted effective from that date.
The Funds are registered with the Financial Conduct Authority (“FCA”) in the UK. The Funds have been
granted Reporting Status for the GBP, EUR and CHF denominated share classes for UK Capital Gains
purposes.
INVESTMENT OBJECTIVE
The objective of the Ennismore European Smaller Companies Fund is to achieve capital growth by
investing principally in small capitalisation European equity securities.
The objective of the Ennismore Global Equity Fund is to generate long term capital growth by investing
principally in equity securities listed on stock exchanges in developed markets.
Both Funds aim to achieve positive absolute returns in each calendar year.
DEALING
The dealing procedures should be read in conjunction with the following important notice section below.
The Dealing Day is each Business Day. Applications for issue and repurchase of redeemable participating
shares (“Shares”) must be received by the Administrator prior to 5.00pm (Dublin time) on the Business
Day preceding a Dealing Day in order to be dealt with on that Dealing Day. Any applications received
after 5.00pm (Dublin Time) on the Business Day immediately preceding the Dealing Day shall, unless
otherwise determined by the Administrator, be processed on the next following Dealing Day.
Applications should be addressed to the Administrator:
Northern Trust International Fund Administration Services (Ireland) Limited
Georges Court
54-62 Townsend Street
Dublin 2
Ireland
Tel: +353 1 542 2000
Fax: +353 1 670 1181
IMPORTANT NOTICE
The number of shares in issue is capped and we have a waiting list of clients that want to invest as and
when capacity becomes available through redemptions. If you would like to be included on this please
call Eleanor Scott on +44 (0) 20 7368 4219 or email subs@ennismorefunds.com. Redemptions can be
made through the Administrator, as described above.
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ENNISMORE SMALLER COMPANIES PLC
SUMMARY INFORMATION (continued…)
CHARGES PAID BY THE FUNDS
Investment Management Fees
The Funds pay Ennismore Fund Management Ltd, (the “Investment Manager”) a fee of:
2% per annum of the NAV of the Funds payable monthly in arrears.
20% per annum performance fee on value added. The performance fee on Class A shares is calculated
based on the excess of the Net Asset Value per ‘‘A’’ share at the end of the calendar year over the Net
Asset Value per ‘‘A’’ share on the last dealing day of the latest year in which the performance fee was
paid.
The performance fee on the other share classes is equal to 20% of the appreciation in the Net Asset Value
per Share during that Calculation Period above the Base Net Asset Value per Share.
The Base Net Asset Value per Share is the greater of the Net Asset Value per Share at the time of issue of
that share and the highest Net Asset Value per Share achieved as at the end of any previous Calculation
Period (if any) during which such share was in issue.
The performance fee in respect of each Calculation Period will be calculated by reference to the Net Asset
Value before deduction for any accrued performance fees. Any performance fee is paid annually in
January for performance achieved in the previous calendar year. Please see note 11 for details of these
fees.
Administration Fees
Northern Trust International Fund Administration Services (Ireland) Limited (the “Administrator and
Registrar”) is paid an administration charge and fees in respect of its duties as Administrator and
Registrar by the Funds. The administration fee accrues and is calculated daily and paid monthly in
arrears. It is charged at a rate of 0.07% per annum on the first £50 million of the Net Asset Value of each
Fund on the last Dealing Day of each month and 0.06% per annum on the Net Asset Value of each Fund
in excess of £50 million. This is subject to a minimum fee of £5,000 per month for each Fund with up to
four Share Classes and £5,250 per month for each Fund with five or more Share Classes. The
Administrator is also entitled to Shareholder dealing fees of £15 per Shareholder transaction and a
Shareholder account fee of £15 per Shareholder account. The Administrator is also entitled to an annual
fee of £7,500 per Fund for German tax reporting services. The fees payable to the Administrator may be
varied from time to time by agreement with the Company subject to the minimum disclosed above. Any
such variation is notified to Shareholders. The fees are exclusive of value added tax (if any) payable by
the Funds.
Depositary Fees
Northern Trust Fiduciary Services (Ireland) Limited acts as Depositary to the Funds (the “Depositary”).
The Depositary fee accrues and is calculated daily and paid monthly in arrears by each Fund. It is charged
at a rate of 0.0225% per annum of the NAV of each Fund subject to a monthly minimum fee of £1,000.
Additionally, the Depositary is entitled to be reimbursed for all sub-custody fees and charges (charged at
normal commercial rates). The fees payable to the Depositary may be varied from time to time by
agreement with the Company. Any increase in the fees payable will be notified to Shareholders. The fees
are exclusive of value added tax (if any) payable by the Funds.
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ENNISMORE SMALLER COMPANIES PLC
SUMMARY INFORMATION (continued…)
CHARGES PAID TO THE FUND
Purchase or Redemption Charge
A redemption charge of 2% of redemptions from the Ennismore European Smaller Companies Fund is
payable to that Fund. No charge is currently being made on subscriptions. This charge is intended to
cover the costs of the Fund investing or divesting in the underlying markets as a consequence of investor
activity. There is no purchase or redemption charge applicable to the Ennismore Global Equity Fund.
DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company are as follows:
Nicholas Durlacher (British) (Chairman)
Mr Durlacher was Chairman of the Balancing and Settlement Code Company, ELEXON and the Panel
overseeing the New Electricity Trading Arrangements in Great Britain from 2000 to 2010. He was also
Chairman of EMX Co Ltd, the electronic messaging platform for unitised financial products within
Europe from February 2000 to January 2007. He was formerly Chairman of The Securities and Futures
Authority from 1995 to 31 March 2001. Between 1992 and 1995 he was Chairman of LIFFE, the world’s
second largest derivative exchange, having been elected a member of the LIFFE board in 1984. Between
1986 and 1996 he was Chief Executive and then Chairman of BZW Futures Limited. Mr Durlacher is
currently Chairman of Xoserve owned by various UK Gas Transporter and Transmission Companies
involved in services to the gas shipping and transportation industry in Great Britain.
Lars Gårdö (Swedish)
Mr Gårdö has been a Senior Advisor of 3i (Nordic) plc. From 1993 to 2001, Mr Gårdö was President and
Chief Executive Officer of Atle AB, a venture capital company quoted on the Stockholm Stock
Exchange. From 1985 to 1993, Mr Gårdö was president of Ax Trade AB, a large publicly owned trading
conglomerate. Between 1979 and 1984, Mr Gårdö was Executive Vice President of Hexagon AB, where
he was responsible for finance and acquisitions. Mr Gårdö’s positions prior to this include that of
Financial Controller of the Agricultural Finance Corporation in Nairobi.
Matthew Minch (Irish)
Mr Minch has been a Director of Tilman Brewin Dolphin Ltd (formerly Tilman Asset Management Ltd)
since 1995, and assumed the role of Chief Executive in June 2014. From 1989 to 1995, Mr Minch worked
as a management consultant in the area of company restructuring and acquisition advice for a number of
Irish companies, particularly in the food sector. Prior to that, he was Managing Director of Minch Norton
plc, Ireland’s largest malt manufacturer. Mr Minch is a fellow of the Chartered Institute of Management
Accountants.
Geoff Oldfield (British)
Mr Oldfield founded the Investment Manager in 1998. Before that he was a Director and Senior Fund
Manager at Baring Asset Management where he was responsible for European smaller companies. From
1993 to 1994, he worked at Enskilda Securities in Frankfurt researching and marketing German smaller
companies. Prior to this, Mr Oldfield was a European Fund Manager at Gartmore and at Midland
Montagu. He is a CFA Charterholder and an Associate of the Chartered Institute of Bankers.
Paul McNaughton (Irish)
Mr McNaughton was a Managing Director and former Global Head of Fund Administration and Custody
for Deutsche Bank Group. Mr McNaughton was also Chief Executive of Deutsche Bank Group’s fund
administration and custody business in Ireland for ten years. Prior to this, Mr McNaughton held several
senior management positions in the financial services industry in Ireland, including General Manager of
IFSC operations with the Investment Bank of Ireland from 1987 to 1991. He is also currently a director of
a number of Irish investment companies.
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ENNISMORE SMALLER COMPANIES PLC
SUMMARY INFORMATION (continued…)
DIRECTORS (continued…)
Andrew Blair (British)
Mr Blair joined Ennismore Fund Management in May 2004 as a Director and Chief Operating Officer. He
started his career with Price Waterhouse in 1985, where he qualified as a chartered accountant. After 7
years, he moved to CAL Futures Ltd, a derivatives broker and fund manager. That business was acquired
by Union PLC, where he became Group Finance Director. Subsequently, he worked for tapX Ltd as
COO. He holds a BA in Accountancy Studies from Exeter University.
FUND DEVELOPMENT – ENNISMORE EUROPEAN SMALLER COMPANIES FUND
Date

31/12/2017
31/12/2016
31/12/2015
31/12/2014
31/12/2013
31/12/2012
31/12/2011
31/12/2010
31/12/2009
31/12/2008
31/12/2007
31/12/2006
31/12/2005
31/12/2004
31/12/2003
31/12/2002
31/12/2001
31/12/2000
31/12/1999
27/01/1999

Fund Size
(in millions)
GBP
EUR
395.3
445.3
365.5
428.2
315.5
428.0
286.1
368.6
269.4
323.8
209.8
258.6
186.2
222.9
99.3
115.9
88.4
99.5
146.9
151.9
179.3
244.2
177.5
263.6
170.0
247.5
128.7
181.7
99.3
140.8
68.7
105.3
63.7
104.1
60.4
95.2
35.0
55.8
9.9
14.2

NAV
per GBP “A” Share
GBP
EUR
127.69
143.85
116.52
136.50
101.80
138.12
92.79
119.57
87.22
104.84
68.89
84.94
63.58
76.12
57.90
67.57
48.89
55.02
49.69
51.40
52.67
71.71
48.28
71.66
44.54
64.82
34.15
48.24
27.65
39.24
21.49
32.98
20.52
33.54
20.21
31.84
14.90
23.71
10.00
14.35

FUND DEVELOPMENT – ENNISMORE GLOBAL EQUITY FUND
Date

31/12/2017
31/12/2016
03/10/2016

Fund Size
(in millions)
GBP
EUR
166.7
187.79
154.6
181.2
51.3
58.7
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NAV
per GBP “A” Share
GBP
EUR
10.72
12.08
10.58
12.39
10.00
11.44

ENNISMORE SMALLER COMPANIES PLC
DIRECTORS’ REPORT
for the year ended 31 December 2017
The Directors present herewith their report, together with the audited financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2017.
Results
The results of operations for the year are set out in the Statement of Comprehensive Income on page 32.
Principal Activities
Ennismore Smaller Companies plc was established on 8 October 1998, as an umbrella type investment
company with segregated liability between sub-funds and with variable capital incorporated in Ireland in
which different funds may be created from time to time. It is authorised in Ireland by the Central Bank of
Ireland as an investment company pursuant to the European Communities (Undertakings for Collective
Investment in Transferable Securities) Regulations 2011 and the Central Bank (Supervision and
Enforcement) Act 2013 (Section 48(1)) (Undertakings for Collective Investment in Transferable
Securities) Regulations 2015. The Company has two sub-funds, the Ennismore European Smaller
Companies Fund and the Ennismore Global Equity Fund. The Ennismore European Smaller Companies
Fund launched 27 January 1999 with the issue of a single class of shares (GBP “A” shares). In January
2011 three additional share classes were issued: GBP “B” shares, EUR “A” shares and EUR “B” shares.
The Ennismore Global Equity Fund launched 3 October 2016 with the issue of four share classes: EUR,
GBP, GBP A and CHF shares.
The GBP A shares in Ennismore European Smaller Companies Fund were listed on the Irish Stock
Exchange until 26 June 2017 when these shares became delisted effective from that date.
The fee rates and liquidity terms are the same for all share classes. The classes differ in that the
performance fees are based on performance in the class currency and that the performance fee for “A”
shares is calculated at share class level. For the other share classes an equalisation method is used.
Review of development of the business and future developments
A detailed review of the business and future developments is included in the Investment Manager’s
Report on pages 16 to 28. The Company will continue to act as an investment vehicle as set out in its
Prospectus.
Analysis of key performance indicators
The analysis of the Company’s key performance indicators (“KPIs”) is contained in the Investment
Manager’s Report on pages 16 to 28.
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ENNISMORE SMALLER COMPANIES PLC
DIRECTORS’ REPORT
for the year ended 31 December 2017 (continued…)
Directors’ and Secretary’s interests
The following Directors held shares in the Company at the year end:
Ennismore European Smaller Companies Fund
No. of GBP
No. of GBP
No. of EUR
No. of EUR
Class A Shares
Class A Shares Class A Shares Class A Shares
31/12/2017
31/12/2016
31/12/2017
31/12/2016
Nicholas Durlacher*
6,190
6,190
Lars Gårdö**
5,730
5,730
536
Matthew Minch***
3,836
3,836
537
Geoff Oldfield****
130,442
130,299
Paul McNaughton
41,823
41,285
Andrew Blair*****
11,846
11,846
*of which 300 shares were held through his ISA administered by Rathbone (2016: 300)
** of which 5,038 shares were held through his own company; Dikarsbo Holding AB (2016:5,038)
***all shares registered under Fundsettle EOC Nominees (2016: all shares)
****of which 19,554 shares were held through his Self Invested Pension Plan administered by Sippdeal (2016: 19,554) and
6,597 shares were held through his ISA’s administered by Killik & Co (2016: 6,597) and 25,947 shares are held by close
family members (2016: 25,804)
***** as at 31 December 2017, 8,580 shares were held through this Self Invested Pension Plan administered by Sippdeal
(2016: 8,580)

None of the Directors had a service contract with the Company. As at 31 December 2017 Geoff Oldfield
had a beneficial interest in 130,442 (2016: 130,299) shares and a non-beneficial interest in 15,196 (2016:
15,196) shares through his connected persons. The Secretary did not hold any interest in the shares of the
Company at any time during the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).
Ennismore Global Equity Fund
No. of GBP
Class A Shares
31/12/2017
Nicholas Durlacher*
1,500
Lars Gårdö**
Matthew Minch
Geoff Oldfield***
1,048,992
Paul McNaughton
Andrew Blair
14,925

No. of GBP
Class A Shares
31/12/2016
1,040,000
14,925

No. of GBP
Class Shares
31/12/2017
14,747
-

No. of GBP
Class Shares
31/12/2016
14,747
-

* all shares were held through his ISA administered by Rathbone
** all shares were held through his own company; Dikarsbo Holding AB
***of which 800,000 shares were held in his own name and 3,332 shares were held through his ISAs administered by Killik &
Co and 245,659 shares are held by close family members (2016: of which 800,000 shares were held in his own name and
240,000 shares held through connected persons)

Transactions Involving Directors
The Board of Directors is not aware of any contracts or arrangements of any significance in relation to the
business of the Company in which the Directors had any interest as defined in the Companies Act 2014 at
any time during the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil) other than those disclosed in note 10
Related party transactions.
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ENNISMORE SMALLER COMPANIES PLC
DIRECTORS’ REPORT
for the year ended 31 December 2017 (continued…)
Directors’ Fees
Directors’ fees for the year are stated in note 10 of the financial statements.
Connected Persons
The Central Bank UCITS Regulations require that if any transaction is carried out with a UCITS by a
management company or depositary to the UCITS, the delegates or sub-delegates of the management
company or depositary and any associated group of such a management company, depositary, delegate or
sub-delegate (“Connected Persons”) must be carried out as if negotiated at arm’s length. Transactions
must be in the best interests of the shareholders. The Directors are satisfied that there are arrangements
(evidenced by written procedures) in place to ensure that the obligations set out in Regulation 41(1) of the
Central Bank UCITS Regulations are applied to all transactions with connected persons, and are satisfied
that transactions with connected persons entered into during the year complied with the obligations set
out in Regulation 41(1) of the Central Bank UCITS Regulations.
Dividends
No distribution is being declared in respect of the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).
Risk management objectives and policies
The principal risks and uncertainties faced by the Company are market price risk, credit risk, currency
risk and liquidity risk, which are outlined in note 15 of the financial statements.
Directors
The Directors who served at any time during the year are as follows:
 Nicholas Durlacher
 Lars Gårdö
 Matthew Minch
 Geoff Oldfield
 Paul McNaughton
 Andrew Blair
Significant events during the year
The significant events affecting the Company during the year are disclosed in note 19 to the financial
statements.
Significant events since year end
The significant events affecting the Company since year end are disclosed in note 20 to the financial
statements.
Securities lending
No securities lending took place during the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: GBP Nil).
Auditors
In accordance with Section 382(2) of the Companies Act 2014, the auditor, KPMG Chartered
Accountants will continue in office.
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ENNISMORE SMALLER COMPANIES PLC
DIRECTORS’ REPORT
for the year ended 31 December 2017 (continued…)
Corporate Governance
Regulation 13 of the European Communities (Directive 2006/46/EC) Regulation 2011, which took effect
from 19 November 2009 requires the Company to include a corporate governance statement in the
Director’s Report. The Company is subject to corporate governance practices imposed by:
(i)

The Irish Companies Act 2014, which is available for inspection at the registered office of the
Company; and may also be obtained at: http://www.irishstatutebook.ie/home.html.
(ii) The Articles of Association of the Company which are available for inspection at the registered
office of the Company at Georges Court, 54-62 Townsend Street, Dublin 2, Ireland; and
(iii) The Central Bank of Ireland in their UCITS Regulations and Guidance Notes which can be obtained
from the Central Bank of Ireland website at:
http://www.financialregulator.ie/industry-sectors/funds/Pages/default.aspx and are available for
inspection at the registered office of the Company.
The Company is not subject to the European Communities (Takeover Bids (Directive 2004/25/EC))
Regulations 2006 and therefore not required to include information relating to voting rights and other
matters required by those Regulations and specified by the Companies Act 2014.
The Board of Directors is committed to maintaining the highest standards of corporate governance and is
accountable to its shareholders for the governance of the Company’s affairs.
The Board has put in place a framework for corporate governance which it believes is appropriate for a
collective investment scheme and which will enable the Company to comply with the relevant provisions
of the Irish Funds Industry Association Corporate Governance Code for Collective Investment Schemes
and Management Companies (the “Code”) which became effective on 1 January 2012 and is available at
http://www.irishfunds.ie/fs/doc/publications/corporate-governance-code-for-collective-investmentschemes-and-management-companies.pdf.
Statement of Compliance
The Board of Directors voluntarily adopted the Code on 29 November 2012. The Company was in
compliance with the Corporate Governance Code during the year and no exceptions were noted.
Accounting Records
The Directors are responsible for ensuring that adequate accounting records as outlined in Section 281 of
the Companies Act 2014 are kept by the Company. To achieve this the Directors of the Company have
employed Northern Trust International Fund Administration Services (Ireland) Limited (the
“Administrator’’) for the year ended 31 December 2017 in order to ensure that those requirements are
complied with for purpose of keeping adequate accounting records. The accounting records are located at
the office of the Administrator at Georges Court, 54-62 Townsend Street, Dublin 2, Ireland.
Internal control and risk management systems relating to the financial reporting process
The Board of Directors is responsible for ensuring that appropriate internal control and risk management
procedures relating to the financial reporting process are in place. Those systems are designed to manage,
rather than eliminate risks, and can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss.
The Company is responsible for keeping adequate accounting records which disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and which enable it to ensure that the
financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting standards generally accepted in Ireland
and which comply with the Companies Act 2014 and the UCITS Regulations.
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ENNISMORE SMALLER COMPANIES PLC
DIRECTORS’ REPORT
for the year ended 31 December 2017 (continued…)
Internal control and risk management systems relating to the financial reporting process
(continued)
The Company has procedures to ensure all relevant accounting records are properly maintained and are
readily available, including production of annual and half-yearly financial statements. The annual and
half-yearly financial statements of the Company are required to be approved by the Board of Directors of
the Company and filed with the Central Bank.
The Company has appointed an independent administrator to maintain the accounting records. The
Administrator is authorised and regulated by the Central Bank and is required to comply with rules issued
by the Central Bank in the conduct of its business. The Board of Directors receives and considers reports
from the Administrator on a regular basis. It also considers and evaluates reports by independent auditors
concerning the operation of controls over its financial accounting and reporting process.
Shareholders’ meetings and rights
The convening and conduct of Shareholders’ meetings is governed by the Articles of Association of the
Company and the Companies Act. Although the Directors may convene an extraordinary general meeting
of the Company at any time, the Directors are required to convene an annual general meeting of the
Company within eighteen months of incorporation and fifteen months of the date of the previous annual
general meeting thereafter.
Shareholders representing not less than one-tenth of the paid up share capital of the Company may also
request the Directors to convene a Shareholders’ meeting. Not less than twenty one days’ notice of every
annual general meeting and any meeting convened for the passing of a special resolution must be given to
shareholders, and fourteen days’ notice must be given in the case of any other general meeting, unless the
auditors of the Company and all the shareholders of the Company entitled to attend and vote agree to
shorter notice.
Two members present either in person or by proxy constitute a quorum at a general meeting, provided
that the quorum for a general meeting convened to consider any alteration to the class rights of shares is
two shareholders holding or representing by proxy at least one third of the issued shares of the relevant
fund or class.
Every holder of participating shares or non-participating shares present in person or by proxy who votes
on a show of hands is entitled to one vote. On a poll, every holder of participating shares present in
person or by proxy is entitled to one vote in respect of each share held by him and every holder of nonparticipating shares is entitled to one vote in respect of all non-participating shares held by him.
The Chairman of a general meeting of the Company, or at least two members present in person or by
proxy, or any holder or holders of participating shares present in person or by proxy, representing at least
one tenth of the shares in issue, having the right to vote at such meeting, may demand a poll.
Shareholders may resolve to sanction an ordinary resolution or special resolution at a Shareholders’
meeting. An ordinary resolution of the Company or of the Shareholders of a particular fund or class
requires a simple majority of the votes cast by the Shareholders voting in person or by proxy at the
meeting at which the resolution is proposed. A special resolution of the Company, or of the Shareholders
of a particular fund or class, requires a majority of not less than 75% of the Shareholders present in
person or by proxy and voting in general meeting in order to pass a special resolution, including a
resolution to amend the Articles of Association.
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Composition and operation of the Board of Directors
The business of the Company is managed by the Directors, who exercise all such powers of the Company
except such powers as are required by the Companies Act or by the Articles of Association of the
Company to be exercised by the Company in general meeting.
Unless otherwise determined by an ordinary resolution of the Company in a general meeting, the number
of Directors may not be less than two. Currently the Board of Directors of the Company is composed of
six Directors, being those listed on page 1 of these financial statements.
A Director may, and the Company Secretary of the Company on the requisition of a Director will, at any
time summon a meeting of the Directors. Questions arising at any meeting of the Directors are determined
by a majority of votes. In the case of an equality of votes, the Chairman has a second or casting vote. The
quorum necessary for the transaction of business at a meeting of the Directors is two.
Audit Committee
The Company has an audit committee in place. The Directors have delegated the day to day investment
management and administration of the Company to the Investment Manager and to the Administrator
respectively. The Directors have also appointed Northern Trust Fiduciary Services (Ireland) Limited as
Depositary of the assets of the Company.
Directors’ Remuneration
In line with the requirements of the UCITS Regulations, the Company is required to adopt remuneration
policies which are consistent with the principles outlined in the UCITS V Directive. The remuneration
policies are designed to ensure that any relevant conflicts of interest can be managed appropriately at all
times and that the remuneration of the Company’s senior staff is in line with the risk policies and
objectives of the Funds it manages. The Remuneration Policy adopted by the Company applies to
“Identified Staff”. The Company’s Identified Staff are its Directors who received, in aggregate GBP
75,000 (2016: GBP 75,000) in fixed remuneration. The Investment Manager also employs four portfolio
managers and three senior managers whose activities have a material impact on the risk profile of the
Company. Please refer to the remuneration disclosure on page 103 for more information. No variable
remuneration was paid by the Company to its Identified Staff.
Directors’ compliance statement
The Directors acknowledge that they are responsible for securing the Company’s compliance with the relevant
obligations as set out in Section 225 of the Companies Act 2014.
The Directors confirm that:
1) A compliance policy document has been drawn up that sets out policies that in our opinion are appropriate to
the Company, respecting compliance by the Company with its relevant obligations.
2) Appropriate arrangements or structures are in place that are, in our opinion, designed to secure material
compliance with the Company’s relevant obligations, and
3) During the financial year, the arrangements or structures referred to in (2) have been reviewed.
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INVESTMENT MANAGER’S REPORT (Unaudited)
for the year ended 31 December 2017
OVERVIEW
This year saw the first anniversary of the Ennismore Global Equity Fund, the second sub-fund of the
Company, which was launched on 3 October 2016. This fund’s remit has a wider universe of investment
opportunities than that focused on by the Ennismore European Smaller Companies Fund. Both funds
follow our established approach of value based stock selection, using in-house research, on a long and
short basis and are managed with the aim of delivering positive absolute returns in each calendar year.
The development of each of the funds during the year is discussed below.
ENNISMORE EUROPEAN SMALLER COMPANIES FUND
Performance
The Net Asset Value (NAV) per share of the GBP Class A shares increased by 9.6% in 2017. This
compares to an increase of 22.4% in the Euromoney Smaller European Total Return Index (in sterling)
and of 13.1% for the MSCI Daily Total Return index (in local currencies). However, the relative
continued weakness of sterling following Brexit meant that the Fund’s NAV per share for the EUR Class
A shares increased by 6.1% while the Euromoney Smaller European Total Return Index rose by 17.7%
(in euros). Setting aside the impact of currency movements on share class performance it is very much
business as usual for the Fund with Brexit continuing to have little impact either way on most of our
investments.
Performance for all share classes is shown in the following table.
MONTHLY RETURNS
Share Class2
NAV per Share 1
Period

HSBC Index 3

GBP A £

GBP A €

GBP B

EUR A

EUR B

127.69

143.85

21.57

20.73

20.79

GBP

% Change

MSCI Index 4

EUR

(local)

% Change

December 17

2.6

1.8

2.6

2.0

1.9

3.1

2.1

1.0

November 17

0.4

-0.1

0.3

0.0

0.0

-1.7

-2.1

-1.7

October 17

-1.2

-0.8

-1.2

-0.9

-0.8

1.0

1.6

2.1

September 17

-1.2

3.4

-1.3

2.6

2.5

-0.2

4.3

2.7

August 17

1.5

-1.6

1.5

-1.0

-1.0

2.1

-0.8

0.1

July 17

2.7

0.9

2.7

1.2

1.2

2.8

0.7

0.6

June 17

-0.6

-1.4

-0.5

-1.2

-1.2

-1.8

-2.4

-2.3

May 17

2.2

-1.2

2.2

-0.6

-0.6

5.5

1.9

2.6

April 17

1.0

2.7

1.0

2.4

2.4

3.1

4.5

1.5

March 17

0.9

0.7

0.9

0.8

0.7

2.3

2.5

3.5

February 17

-0.2

0.4

-0.2

0.3

0.3

2.5

3.0

2.8

January 17

1.2

0.6

1.2

0.7

0.7

1.8

1.4

-0.3
13.1

2017
Annualised return5
Since launch5

9.6

5.4

9.5

6.1

6.1

22.4

17.7

14.5

13.1

11.7

11.1

11.2

10.4

9.0

4.4

1201.0

921.5

115.7

107.3

107.9

549.7

407.9

124.8

1

S ourc e : Adminis tra tor, Ne t As s e t Va lue . 2 S ourc e : Adminis tra tor, Ne t As s e t Va lue , ne t inc ome re inve s te d. 3 S ourc e : Bloombe rg, Euromone y (forme rly HS BC) S ma lle r Europe a n Tota l Re turn Inde x. 4 S ourc e :
Bloombe rg, MS CI Europe Inde x, loc a l c urre nc ie s , tota l re turn. 5 S inc e inc e ption of GBP A s ha re c la s s on 27/01/99 to da te , GBP B s ha re c la s s on 19/01/11 to da te , EUR A a nd EUR B s ha re c la s s e s on
31/01/11 to da te . Note : All pe rforma nc e figure s ne t of fe e s . P a s t p e rfo rma n c e is n o t a g u id e to fu tu re re tu rn s .

Comments below on performance refer to the NAV per share of the GBP Class A shares in sterling, exclude cash returns and
are prior to expenses.

The Fund generated a respectable return during the year for sterling investors, albeit slightly weaker for
those in the euro share classes.
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ENNISMORE EUROPEAN SMALLER COMPANIES FUND (continued)

Monthly Returns (continued)
Long positions added 22.7% to NAV and, with an average weighting of 78% during the period, the
implied return came to 29%. The Fund’s short exposure cost 7.5% of NAV which, based on an average
short exposure of 47%, implies that the underlying stocks increased in value by an average of 16%.
The largest contributions on the long side came from Kongsberg (2.0%), Conviviality, (1.4%), Olso Bors
(1.1%) and JD Sport (1.0%). There were few negative performers in the long book.
Kongsberg in particular performed well throughout the year, in particular off the back of strong Q2 results
announced in July. Our largest holding JD Sports has reported well throughout the year and in fact we
took the opportunity to add to the position in June.
Overall, the short book cost 7.5% of NAV in the year however there were some positive performers,
notably a German retail conglomerate and Telit which contributed 1.3% and 1.0% respectively. The main
detractors were a German software company (-2.3%), a German financial services company (-1.7%), a
UK semiconductor supplier (-1.6%) and a US Communications company (-0.7%).
Top Ten Holdings as at 31 December 2017*

Company

Country

Sector

% of
NAV

Performance
Contribution
(%)

1

JD Sports Fashion

United Kingdom

Consumer Discretionary

5.3

1.0

2

Kongsberg Auto

Norway

Consumer Discretionary

3.7

2.0

3

Costain

United Kingdom

Industrials

3.4

0.6

4

Cegedim

France

Health Care

3.2

0.8

5

Oslo Bors

Norway

Financials

3.0

1.1

6

Metro Ag

Germany

Consumer Staples

2.8

(0.1)

7

Cello Group

United Kingdom

Consumer Discretionary

2.7

0.8

8

Renk

Germany

Consumer Discretionary

2.7

0.4

9

VIB Vermoegen

Germany

Real Estate

2.6

0.6

10

Sto

Germany

Materials

2.6

0.8

Total

32.0

* Excludes short exposure

Portfolio Activity
Our ten largest holdings account for 32% of the Fund’s total NAV at the end of December, which is
slightly higher than at the previous year end (28.9%). JD Sports remains the largest position within the
portfolio and 5 others from 2016 remaining in the top 10 being VIB Vermoegen, Oslo Bors, Cegedim,
Renk and Cello Group. Kongsberg Auto and Sto both returned to the top 10 due to an increase in our
positions combined with satisfactory performance. Our holding in Costain was increased significantly
during the year whilst Metro AG is a new position for the fund. Although no longer within our 10 largest
holdings U&I Group and Strabag remain significant positions for the fund whilst Conviviality and Market
Tech Holdings were disposed of during the year, the latter following a takeover offer. The five largest
holdings are discussed further below.
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ENNISMORE EUROPEAN SMALLER COMPANIES FUND (continued)
TOP FIVE STOCK COMMENTS

JD Sports Fashion – UK apparel retailer (5.3% NAV)
JD Sports is the dominant UK retailer in the sports fashion segment, and is now building on a strong
operating model and excellent supplier relationships to expand internationally. Sports fashion accounts
for around 90% of revenue and all of the company’s profit. The chain is very well positioned at the
premium end of the market and benefits from increasing demand for athleisure products. In recent years
this has become a broad based trend but most importantly for JD Sports, younger people consistently
want the must-have athleisure clothes and trainers, perhaps reinforced by the rise of social media. This
has helped JD Sports to achieve double digit like-for-like growth over the last three years in stores and
even stronger growth online. This financial year like-for-likes in stores have come down to low single
digits, not helped by a weaker release schedule of new trainer models, although many retailers would be
very happy with this outcome.
JD Sports’ early decision to focus on the higher end of the market has led to strong relationships with the
dominant brands such as Nike & Adidas, who provide them with a significant amount of exclusive
product as well as access to new products ahead of other retailers. As a result JD Sports has become the
go-to chain for customers seeking high-fashion sports footwear and clothing. Most importantly, its
premium positioning means JD Sports does not suffer from aggressive discounting by mass market
operators, notably Sports Direct, or online discount retailers who offer a very different product range.
This creates a virtuous circle as product differentiation has helped JD Sports to grow, encouraging key
suppliers to favour them more. Although the big brands do sell direct to consumers we believe their key
focus is on product development as opposed to retailing and partners such as JD Sports are crucial to that
strategy. This strong relationship has also formed the basis for a strong international business which is
now around 33% of sports fashion sales. JD Sports is the preferred retail partner for many suppliers to
grow in new geographies, and they are rolling out stores in most parts of Europe with the aim to dominate
the sports fashion category in the same way as in the UK. Recently they have also opened a few stores in
Malaysia with a local partner as well as entering Australia. We would hope they enter a larger, more
developed Asian market over the next 12 months. Last financial year the sports fashion division delivered
like-for-like growth of over 10% and grew operating profits by around 50% to circa GBP 245m. Over the
next few years we believe that JD Sports has significant profit growth potential as it strengthens its
position within Europe, and lays the foundations for further international expansion.
The remaining 10% of revenue comes from the outdoor division. This is showing signs of improvement
and the GBP 125m acquisition of Go Outdoors combined with the Blacks chain makes JD Sports the UK
market leader with revenue of around GBP 350m. We are unsure whether this segment can be turned into
a high single digit margin business, but see the potential as well as the benefits of access to certain
outdoor brands for the main division.
The Company is led by a stable team of Executive Chairman Peter Cowgill and Finance Director Brian
Small. Peter Cowgill has been instrumental in the strategic positioning of JD Sports and has a material
shareholding in the Company.
JD Sports’ market valuation now sits at GBP 3.6bn with around GBP 223m of net cash at July 2017. This
compares to recently upgraded expectations of circa GBP 3bn revenue and over GBP 300m of operating
profit for the year to January 2018 and a post-tax return on invested capital of circa 30%.
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ENNISMORE EUROPEAN SMALLER COMPANIES FUND (continued)
TOP FIVE STOCK COMMENTS (continued)

JD Sports Fashion – UK apparel retailer (5.3% NAV) (continued)
We value the business at 17 times operating profits after tax, given its unique offering, increasing
competitive moat plus the potential to expand into other markets, and see upside of 35% in the next 12
months.
Kongsberg Auto – Norwegian auto components manufacturer (3.7% NAV)
Kongsberg Automotive is a niche, global supplier of components to the passenger car industry (around
60% of its c. EUR 1bn of turnover) and the commercial vehicle industry (40%). Half of sales are in
Europe and a third in North America. The company has three divisions – Powertrain & Chassis Products
(40%), Interior (25%), and Speciality products (35%). The CEO Henning Jensen joined in June 2016 after
activist shareholders agitated for change when the previous management failed to deliver on the
turnaround in group profitability targeted. Since starting he has embarked on an ambitious path to
structurally improve operating margins from under four to more than nine percent from 2016 to 2020 and
increase post tax return on net operating assets to, on our calculations, around 13%. This has involved
changing many senior managers and the corporate culture including remuneration principles, alongside a
more aggressive transition away from inefficient production plants (closing 6 of 31).
The problem area is still disappointingly the Powertrain and Chassis Products division, trading around
breakeven currently, although 2018 is expected to see a step up in margins towards five percent due to a
more profitable commercial vehicle contract coming through. The turnaround here will be also
particularly helped by cost savings from plant closure; however structurally this segment has more
headwinds and we believe once they improve the profitability it would be more valuable under someone
else’s ownership. In Interior (e.g. lumbar support, seat heating and Light Duty Cables which they decided
to keep post the management change) margins are pretty solid at more than six percent as seat comfort is
a key factor in consumer’s choice of car. Margins are being held back here by a contract agreed under the
previous regime which is likely to be loss making over the next few years. Specialty Products (consisting
of air couplings, specialty vehicle hosing and off highway components) has the best margins due to its
niche positioning generating double digit margins and expected to increase to over 15%. This segment is
going to get a bigger sales investment going forward from the management due to the number of
opportunities available which we’d expect to yield a positive impact on sales growth in the medium term.
Kongsberg is typically one of the top two suppliers, with market shares of 30% to 45% into the Western
OEMs and Tier One suppliers. Overall customer concentration is acceptable with the largest customer
accounting for less than 10% of sales while the top five account for around 35%.
In 2017 we expect turnover to up by around five percent as previous contract wins start to come through,
we also expect operating profit before amortisation of acquired intangibles to increase by around 40% to
around €60m excluding the restructuring costs of €24m. Recent orders show future sales growth is likely
to be led by emerging markets ‘trading up’ and overall we expect high single digit percentage organic
growth over the next few years. Due to the cost of restructuring in 2017 and in 2018 we don’t expect the
cash flow generation to reflect the improvements being made to the business until 2019 onwards. Once
improvements have come through we’d expect the business to be generating more than EUR 60m of free
cash flow per annum versus the EUR 440m market capitalisation. Kongsberg’s management’s primary
focus is to use this cash to reduce the net debt of EUR 228m (as of the third quarter).
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Kongsberg Auto – Norwegian auto components manufacturer (3.7% NAV) (continued)
Kongsberg’s current focus on structurally moving the company to a double digit margin business through
the cycle means that no acquisitions are expected in the short term. We believe Kongsberg Automotive is
undervalued based on the results of its restructuring and our belief in the management to execute their
plan. The stock trades on an enterprise value to operating profit, after tax, of nine times, and a price to
earnings of less than seven times, both based on our 2019 estimates. We see this as materially
undervaluing the long term earnings power of the business. Valuing the stock on a multiple of twelve
times net operating profit after tax gives around 50% upside over the next two years.
Costain – UK engineering and construction company (3.4% NAV)
Costain is a construction company with a market capitalisation of GBP 483m that focuses on projects in
segments of the UK market with attractive long term structural and regulatory drivers. Whilst a poor
approach to risk management on fixed price contracts combined with low profit margins has meant that
construction companies are often unattractive investments, we believe Costain is different and this is
overlooked by the market. The segments in which they operate require specialist engineering expertise,
innovative solutions, and sometimes the need to incorporate technology into the project to win contracts.
Working closely with their customers in a consultancy like partnership reduces the competitor set Costain
faces, and typically there are just two to three bidders for a project. Unlike a traditional construction firm,
contracts are based on cost reimbursement with profit gains for hitting targets rather than fixed price
contracts. Costain also has strong visibility with an order book of around GBP 3.7bn versus sales of GBP
1.6bn in 2016. All this leads to a more defensive, higher margin, better quality earnings stream than an
average construction company.
The infrastructure sector which covers the highway, rail and nuclear energy markets accounts for GBP
1.2bn of its revenue. Infrastructure has been the key profit generator in the last three years as revenues
have increased by two thirds and the division has delivered operating margins before central costs
towards the top of the 4-5% target range. Rail and highways are at the core of this division and both are
benefiting from the increasing investments needed to increase capacity and alleviate overcrowding.
Examples of projects include the conversion of highways to ‘smart’ motorways enabling the use of hard
shoulders as a traffic lane or helping to build the infrastructure required for the High Speed Two rail line
connecting London to Birmingham. The remaining GBP 0.4bn is in Natural Resources, made up of the
water, power and oil & gas industries. This division has had a tough time in the same period due to
weakness in the oil & gas sector as well as problems with a legacy fixed price contract awarded in 2007
in waste energy, which is now completed but which we estimate has cost the company at least GBP 40m.
Typical work here would be projects to structurally reduce water leakages in the wastewater network or
developing gas storage solutions. Now the legacy issues are behind them and the oil & gas market seems
to have troughed we would expect margins in this segment to increase, although we don’t expect the 45% margin target to be achieved in the near term.
The strong management team have been in the business for over 10 years and in that time have moved the
company into being the differentiated offering it is now. This transformation has been assisted by bolt-on
acquisitions to give the technology and expertise to add value for customers as well as hiring PhD
graduates in niche technology areas to build their in-house technical capabilities.
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Costain – UK engineering and construction company (3.4% NAV) (continued)
As an aside, longer term we wouldn’t be surprised if the company becomes an acquisition target given its
niche positioning in the higher quality part of the construction market (covering over GBP 20bn of a total
GBP 100bn UK construction market), although as always this is not the reason for owning the stock.
In the first half of the year, profits grew around 35%, as sales grew over 11% and legacy costs dropped
out. We expect growth of over 20% for 2017 to GBP 50m post central costs of GBP 7m and prudently
expect this to increase by over 10% in 2018. The balance sheet is strong with net cash, including the
pension deficit, of GBP 44m as of first half 2017, although cash flow will be weak this year due to the
reversal of a working capital benefit in 2016. Return on invested capital after tax is close to 50% due to it
being an asset light business and having a tightly managed working capital cycle leading to negative
working capital. This financial strength and low capital requirement enables an attractive and growing 3%
dividend yield.
We don’t expect to see any negative consequences for Costain arising from the recent bankruptcy of
Carillion plc given their limited overlap, with any impact being more likely to be on the positive side
from contract wins.
We believe Costain is currently being overlooked by the market, despite having a strong focus on growth
areas with higher quality contracts and strong customer relationships. We value the stock very
conservatively at 12 times enterprise value to post tax operating profits, which gives upside of over 25%
by the end of 2018.
Cegedim – French healthcare software developer (3.2% NAV)
We initially invested in Cegedim in 2014 when the company announced the transformative disposal of its
Customer Relationship Management and Strategic Data division. This had been the core business, but its
dependence on a structurally declining base of pharmaceutical sales representatives meant it was
struggling. At the time, we were excited by the opportunity to invest in a more focused healthcare IT
business, with positive underlying trends and significantly lower debt. Whilst the share price is now
approximately 30% above our average purchase price, it has turned out that we were too optimistic. The
company had been underinvesting in its software businesses to boost cash flow and correcting this has
been a headwind to profitability in recent years.
The company recently announced the disposal of its last remaining non-core business, Cegelease,
improving its free cash flow profile. We believe that past strategic mistakes have been corrected and the
return to organic growth and completion of major investments should drive greater profitability over the
next two to three years. Cegedim offers a range of software solutions, each targeting specific parts of the
healthcare industry. The historic lack of investment has cost Cegedim some market share in recent years.
However, given that healthcare customers are typically conservative and rely on the software for their
day-to-day operations, this means that the company has experienced moderate customer churn and
maintained strong positions in its core markets of France and the UK.
Currently, profits are being held back by a number of initiatives and factors. Additional development
costs are being incurred to make all products available as cloud-based solutions and there is upfront
investment in large business process outsourcing contracts with insurance companies.
21

ENNISMORE SMALLER COMPANIES PLC
INVESTMENT MANAGER’S REPORT (Unaudited)
for the year ended 31 December 2017 (continued…)
ENNISMORE EUROPEAN SMALLER COMPANIES FUND (continued)
TOP FIVE STOCK COMMENTS (continued)

Cegedim – French healthcare software developer (3.2% NAV) (continued)
The Company is also experiencing a migration of revenues from initial licenses to service contracts which
spreads revenue over a longer period and therefore adversely impacts near term profits. 2018 should mark
the first year of visible improvement with declining research and development expenses expected over the
next 3 years, a stable workforce and organic growth of around 6%. We expect that the introduction of
new software solutions will help regain lost ground especially for the French pharmacy and the UK
business, supporting a sustainable return to profitable growth. This would do much to improve investor
sentiment and restore management credibility.
In the first nine months of 2017, revenues increased by 6.3% on an organic basis to EUR 340m. The
Health Insurance, HR and e-services division grew by 9.9% to EUR 208m whilst the Healthcare
Professionals division remained largely unchanged at EUR 129m. We expect a return to profitable growth
in Q4 and for the company to achieve its full year revenue guidance of circa EUR 465m. Furthermore, we
expect an operating profit before depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA) of circa EUR 72m, resulting in
a 15% EBITDA margin. Based on a current market cap of EUR 500m and an expected net debt of around
EUR 130m by year-end 2018, Cegedim trades at an enterprise value to operating profit of around 14
times. Given the strong fundamentals of this business with solid growth prospects, good visibility from a
high share of recurring revenues, high retention rates and low customer concentration, we believe it
deserves a higher valuation. The reducing levels of investment should also boost cash generation and we
expect Cegedim to commence dividend payments in 2018. In the mid-term, the company targets EBITDA
margins of 20% in 2020 and based on its historic profitability and that of close peers Compugroup, EMIS
and Pharmagest, this should be achievable. If delivered, the current valuation would prove to be very
cheap indeed. Based on an enterprise value to net operating profit after tax of 12.5 times for 2019, we see
30% upside for the shares in the next 12 months and materially more if mid-term targets are met.
Oslo Bors VPS – Norwegian equity market and central securities depositary (3.0% NAV)
Oslo Bors VPS is the combination of two Norwegian financial services businesses - the national stock
exchange Oslo Bors and VPS, which is the central securities depository (CSD). Oslo Bors is the main
securities market in Norway. Although its monopoly position in equity trading was eroded after European
markets were liberalised by MiFID legislation in 2008, revenue and profitability have now stabilised.
Market share appears to be steady with Oslo Bors consistently taking nearly two thirds of value traded, a
similar level to other primary exchanges across Europe. Per trade fees are also only a small part of the
sales mix, with most revenue coming from fixed fees charged to issuers, member brokers and for access
to market data. The technology platform is now supplied by the London Stock Exchange which makes the
investment needed by Oslo Bors itself predictably low and may even allow them to reduce their own cost
base a little. We expect Oslo Bors will have delivered operating profit of about NOK 250m in 2017,
significantly ahead of our forecast of c.NOK 200m going into the year.
Most of VPS's revenue is very stable, with Norwegian law requiring public companies to be registered
with a CSD and private individuals to hold shares in a CSD account. Although not mandated by law
many private firms and funds also use the service. Altogether fees from maintaining shareholder registers
and accounts, where VPS is effectively a monopoly supplier, generate more than three quarters division
revenue and should grow steadily over time. With a relatively fixed cost base, we continue to expect VPS
to make a profit of close to NOK 200m a year.
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Oslo Bors VPS – Norwegian equity market and central securities depositary (3.0% NAV)
(continued)
Oslo Bors VPS is overlooked by many investors because it trades on the OTC market in Norway. This is
due to a restriction imposed by a previous Norwegian government which blocked the company's attempt
to list on Oslo Bors due to perceived conflicts of interest. Other than c.NOK 500m of regulatory capital,
Oslo Bors VPS has low capital needs and so can pay out a high dividend equivalent to most if not all of
its net profit, giving a high single digit yield. The current market cap of NOK 5,400m values the company
at around 15 times free cashflow. A return to significant growth last year suggests this may still
significantly undervalue the shares.
Exposures by Country, Market Cap and Sector as a Percentage of NAV at 31 December 2017
Country

Gross%

Net%

Australia

1.7

0.6

Austria

3.8

Belgium
France

Gross%

Net%

>£2bn

37.4

0.4

-0.5

£700m - £2bn

32.7

1.2

-0.3

£200m - £700m

8.3

6.4

<£200m

31.3

5.9

Hong Kong

1.7

-1.7

Italy

3.9

3.7

Netherlands

2.5

-0.2

Norway

7.7

7.7

Spain

1.2

-1.2

Sweden

2.0

0.5

Switzerland

5.7

-5.7

UK

43.7

13.9

US

9.3

-0.4

Other

1.7

0.0

Germany

Market Cap

Sector

Gross%

Net%

Consumer Discretionary

37.1

14.8

-5.5

Consumer Staples

10.0

-1.4

35.2

20.0

Energy

0.6

-0.6

20.4

13.8

Financials

7.7

2.1

Health Care

5.7

3.8

Industrials

19.1

5.3

Information Technology

30.5

-2.9

Materials

4.1

3.1

Real Estate

7.8

3.1

Telecommunication

3.1

1.4

Utilities

0.0

0.0

Other

0.0

0.0

Geographic analysis relates to country of incorporation or listing. This may not represent the underlying economic exposure of the operating
business.

Portfolio as at 31 December 2017
Longs %
Shorts %

Gross Exposure %

Net Exposure %

77.2 (77.8)

125.7 (113.6)

28.7 (42.0)

48.5 (35.8)

Figures in brackets refer to 31 December 2016

The Fund’s aggregate exposures are always a consequence of the investments that we make in individual
companies and are not target levels that we set out to achieve. The net exposure of the portfolio decreased
significantly over the year, primarily due to an increase in our short book, and is towards the lower end of
the Fund’s historic range. Gross exposure remains modest and, as always, the Fund has no external
funding requirement.
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ENNISMORE GLOBAL EQUITY FUND

Performance
The Ennismore Global Equity Fund (“the Fund”) launched on 3 October 2016. For 2017 the Fund’s
NAV per share was up 1.3% in sterling, down 2.2% in euro and up 5.4% in Swiss francs. We are not in
this business to produce single digit returns. We don’t expect to in the long run. That said, we focus on
the inputs – our investment process and stock selection – which have delivered for us in the past. We are
happy with the Fund’s portfolio and believe our approach will yield a very good return for our investors.
Monthly Returns
Share Class
NAV per Share 1
Period
December 17
November 17
October 17

GBP

GBP A

EUR

CHF

10.74

10.72

10.56

11.22

5.5

5.5

5.1

4.0

-1.2

-1.2

-1.6

-0.6

% Change

1.3

1.3

1.7

2.8

-2.8

-2.8

1.8

1.9

August 17

3.2

3.2

0.0

0.4

July 17

1.0

1.0

-0.9

3.2

June 17

-1.5

-1.5

-2.2

-1.8

September 17

May 17

1.7

1.7

-1.7

-1.4

April 17

-2.9

-2.9

-1.4

-0.2

March 17

-1.1

-1.2

-1.3

-0.7

February 17

-1.3

-1.4

-0.7

-1.0

January 17

-0.2

-0.1

-0.7

-1.3

2017

1.3

1.3

-2.2

5.4

Annualised return 3

5.9

5.8

4.5

9.7

Since launch2

7.4

7.2

5.6

12.2

1

S o u rc e : Ad min is tra to r, Ne t As s e t Va lu e . 2 S in c e in c e p tio n o n 0 3 /10 /16 . No te : All p e rfo rma n c e fig u re s n e t
o f fe e s . P a s t p e rfo rma n c e is n o t a g u id e to fu tu re re tu rn s .

Long / Short Book Attribution for the Year by Share Class Currency
GBP
2017

EUR

CHF

% Contribution

Long

15.0

11.5

19.3

Short

-9.4

-9.1

-9.2

We expect our long positions to compound value at double digit rates over our typical holding period,
which is measured in years not months. In 2017 they contributed 15.0% (based on the sterling share
class). The implied return, based on an average exposure of 84%, was around 18%. The most significant
contributors to the long book were Etsy Inc and MTU Aero Engines Gmbh, adding 3.5% and 2.4% to
NAV respectively, and they remain the largest holdings in the Fund.
Our short book performed poorly last year, costing the Fund 9.4% of NAV. Based on average short
exposure of 46%, the implied return was around -20%. Most of this loss is unrealised because for most of
our shorts we have not seen anything that has changed our minds. We expect these positions will
contribute significantly to future returns. The main negatives were Wirecard AG and Straight Path
Communications Inc, costing 3.4% and 2.6% of NAV respectively. Straight Path agreed to be acquired by
Verizon Communications Inc during the year. Wirecard remains the Fund’s largest short position, which
now includes some exposure through the purchase of out of the money put options in January 2018.

24

ENNISMORE SMALLER COMPANIES PLC
INVESTMENT MANAGER’S REPORT (Unaudited)
for the year ended 31 December 2017 (continued…)
ENNISMORE GLOBAL EQUITY FUND (continued)

Top Five Holdings as at 31 December 2017*

Company

Country

% of
NAV

Sector

1

Etsy

United States

Information Technology

9.4

2

MTU Aero Engines

Germany

Industrials

6.9

3

TPG Telecom

Australia

Telecommunication Services

6.2

4

Under Armour

United States

Consumer Discretionary

6.0

5

Schibsted

Norway

Consumer Discretionary

5.9

Total

34.4

* Excludes short exposure

Portfolio Activity
Several new long positions were added to the Fund during the year, notably Boston Beer Company Inc
and Under Armour Inc. We have followed these businesses for a long time. Shares in both sold off on the
back of relatively weak sales, allowing us to buy them at a price that we believe will deliver very
attractive returns. The Fund’s investment in PotashCorp was sold. The company is in the process of
merging with Agrium Inc and although we believe it remains undervalued, we are less certain of the fair
value of the combined entity.
Exposures by Country, Market Cap and Sector as a Percentage of NAV at 31 December 2017
Country

Gross%

Net%

Gross%

Net%

Gross%

Net%

United States

46.9

18.6

Market Cap
>$10bn

19.2

-4.7

Sector
Consumer Discretionary

37.1

23.2

United Kingdom

28.0

11.2

$5bn-$10bn

32.7

29.6

Consumer Staples

14.7

3.9

Germany

21.2

5.2

$1bn-$5bn

64.0

28.1

Energy

0.4

-0.4

Australia

<$1bn

16.2

-7.7

10.1

5.5

Financials

4.8

2.1

Norway

5.9

5.9

Health Care

1.6

0.0

Netherlands

3.1

1.7

Industrials

17.7

9.4

Canada

3.0

-0.8

Information Technology

39.3

2.0

Hong Kong

2.3

-2.3

Materials

2.1

-2.1

Switzerland

2.3

-2.3

Real Estate

Sweden

1.4

1.1

Telecommunication Services

Belgium

1.3

0.2

Other

6.6

1.3

2.3

-2.3

12.1

9.5

Utilities

0.0

0.0

Other

0.0

0.0

Geographic analysis relates to country of incorporation or listing. This may not represent the underlying economic exposure of the operating
business.

Portfolio as at 31 December 2017
Longs %
Shorts %
88.7 (71.5)
43.4 (37.4)

Gross Exposure %
132.1 (108.9)

Figures in brackets refer to 31 December 2016
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Net Exposure %
45.3 (34.1)
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OUTLOOK
Brexit
Further to the announcement of the UK’s departure to leave the European Union (EU) with an exit date of
29 March 2019 the directors of the Company and the Investment Manager have given consideration to the
possible outcomes of Brexit and their impact on the business.
At present there is a lack of clarity regarding the relationship between the UK and the EU post Brexit. As
such the Company is not in a position to make definitive plans no action has yet been taken in response to
the announcement.
Until there is clarification of the relationship and any resultant impact on the company and its
stakeholders, the directors are keeping developments under review and consideration is being given to the
consequences of the potential departure of the UK from the single market for services. However, it is not
currently anticipated that there will be any material impact on investors in the funds.
Outlook for the Funds
As always, Ennismore Fund Management will stick closely to our investment philosophy and process
outlined below, we consider it to be well suited to the current environment.
INVESTMENT PHILOSOPHY AND PROCESS
We focus our research on smaller companies because we believe many are mispriced due to the lack of
interest from brokers and investors. Banks’ and brokers’ research coverage on smaller and mid cap
stocks is limited by the lower level of fees that they can earn from these companies, which tends to lead to
greater pricing inefficiencies in the segment. Even so, relatively few of these stocks meet our stringent
selection criteria.
The following list gives some examples of what we are looking for:


Great business franchises - the smaller companies sector is their likely birthplace. To identify them
at an early stage is the most financially rewarding part of our job as smaller company investors.



Highly entrepreneurial, flexible and equity focused management teams - the best smaller
company managers leave most of their large cap counterparts trailing.



Domination of market niches - some smaller companies dominate their market to a degree that is
unusual amongst large companies. Their significantly lower unit costs in areas such as product
development and distribution can enable them to sustain high levels of profitability for long periods.



Strong exposure to a superior, yet under distributed product combined with high entry
barriers - investors can often benefit from fast growth whilst the risks are low despite the lack of
diversification.

By focusing on strong business franchises and on attractive valuations we expect to generate positive
returns independent of the fortunes of the asset class.
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Ennismore has a stock picking approach emphasising detailed in-house fundamental analysis. Our ideal
investments are high quality companies run for shareholders that are under researched, with accelerating
earnings growth and the scope for a re-rating. We are opportunistic – we focus on areas where bargains
are easiest to come by – as well as risk averse. Our investment process has four key features:
1. Focus on inefficiencies
As smaller companies generate low commission volumes for brokers, they are often under researched and
mispriced. This makes them an ideal hunting ground. We systematically monitor Initial Public Offerings,
underperformers and ‘fallen angels’ (high quality growth stocks that have been de-rated sharply). In
order to ensure a margin of safety, we insist on significant mispricings that a clearly identifiable catalyst
will correct.
2. Focus on high quality
We look for companies that are capable of creating high and sustainable returns. Our measure for this is
an expected minimum Return on Net Operating Assets (RONOA) of 10% per annum over a business
cycle. Most companies we invest in achieve returns of well over 20%.
What is RONOA?
RONOA =

Operating Profit
Net Operating Assets

This ratio indicates what return the company’s operating assets (i.e. its machines, stocks, buildings etc.)
generate. By focusing on operating rather than pre-tax income, we ignore income from any cash balances
and interest payments on any debt. A high and sustainable RONOA has important financial implications:
the company generates a strong cash flow, enabling it to finance strong growth, accumulate cash or repay
any debt quickly.
3. Focus on risk minimisation
In our fundamental research, we analyse what could go wrong under the headings operational, financial
and valuation risk. A selection of the questions asked are:
Operational risk
 Is a high level of profitability sustainable? What stops others from imitating good products or
services? Could strongly growing mass markets attract fierce competition from large companies?
 Is the ‘company line’ confirmed by independent sources, e.g. industry associations, customers,
suppliers and competitors?
 Which costs are fixed and which costs are variable? What is the sensitivity to price and volume
changes?
 At what stage in its cycle is the industry?
 Is the company growing organically or by acquisition?
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Financial risk
 Is the level of debt comfortable in relation to future cash flows and expansion plans?
 Are there potential risks in the balance sheet? Are the accounting policies conservative? Are trade
debtors and stocks moderate in relation to turnover and profits?
Valuation risk
 Is there a significant discount to the company’s real value?
 Is this an established growth stock where a deteriorating earnings outlook would lead to a sharp derating?
Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is an important consideration when deciding stock weightings in the portfolio. Naturally,
the highest weightings are given to those positions that have the largest discount to their target price, but
we take into account historic trading volumes and the level of the free float.
4. Due diligence and ongoing monitoring
Detailed due diligence and ongoing monitoring are important tools in order to safeguard strong returns.
Limiting the number of stocks per Fund Manager gives us sufficient time to conduct an in depth analysis
of each position and to monitor positions on an ongoing basis.

Ennismore Fund Management Limited
29 January 2018
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Note
Bank Interest Income
Dividend income
Net gain on financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss
Total revenue
Investment Management fee
Performance fee
Administration fee
Depositary fee
Dividends paid on contracts for differences (CFDs)
Other expenses
Total operating expenses
Interest expense
Bond interest expense
Total finance costs
Increase in net assets attributable to Holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares before tax
Withholding tax
Increase in net assets attributable to Holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares

Ennismore
European Smaller
Companies Fund
Year ended
31/12/2017
GBP
6,431,559

Ennismore
European Smaller
Companies Fund
Year ended
31/12/2016
GBP
137
5,671,322

Ennismore
Global Equity
Fund
Year ended
31/12/2017
GBP
2,529,602

Ennismore
Global Equity
Fund
Period ended
31/12/2016*
GBP
132,326

Company Total
Year ended
31/12/2017
GBP
8,961,161

Company Total
Year ended
31/12/2016
GBP
137
5,803,648

55,421,372
61,852,931
(7,628,520)
(7,725,813)
(286,247)
(187,411)
(2,986,551)
(257,101)
(19,071,643)
(6,613,048)
(36,911)
(6,649,959)

68,043,589
73,715,048
(6,914,602)
(8,349,375)
(231,509)
(158,813)
(2,182,801)
(211,728)
(18,048,828)
(5,949,160)
(70,334)
(6,019,494)

9,397,757
11,927,359
(3,280,967)
(536,553)
(113,018)
(100,107)
(767,407)
(140,875)
(4,938,927)
(4,089,595)
(15,104)
(4,104,699)

9,540,661
9,672,987
(628,746)
(2,340,913)
(21,889)
(19,892)
(55,609)
(69,773)
(3,136,822)
(534,288)
(534,288)

64,819,129
73,780,290
(10,909,487)
(8,262,366)
(399,265)
(287,518)
(3,753,958)
(397,976)
(24,010,570)
(10,702,643)
(52,015)
(10,754,658)

77,584,250
83,388,035
(7,543,348)
(10,690,288)
(253,398)
(178,705)
(2,238,410)
(281,501)
(21,185,650)
(6,483,448)
(70,334)
(6,553,782)

36,131,329
(494,328)

49,646,726
(360,272)

2,883,733
(250,332)

6,001,877
(7,408)

39,015,062
(744,660)

55,648,603
(367,680)

35,637,001

49,286,454

2,633,401

5,994,469

38,270,402

55,280,923

4
10,11
10,11
11
11
14
5
1 (d)

1 (d), 2

*Ennismore Global Equity Fund launched 3 October 2016.
The accompanying notes and schedules form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Note
Current Assets
Deposits with credit institutions
Cash held with counterparties
Cash equivalents
Debtors

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Transferable Securities
Transferable Securities Pledged as Collateral
Unrealised gain on contracts for difference

Total Current Assets

7
15 (b)
6

1 (c)
17

Ennismore
European Smaller
Companies Fund
31/12/2017
GBP

Ennismore
European Smaller
Companies Fund
31/12/2016
GBP

Ennismore
Global Equity
Fund
31/12/2017
GBP

Ennismore
Global Equity
Fund
31/12/2016
GBP

Company Total
31/12/2017
GBP

Company Total
31/12/2016
GBP

66,027,657
20,987,679
21,772,321
52,439
108,840,096

69,894,428
20,408,239
14,916,990
389,666
105,609,323

18,420,379
11,458,213
6,785
29,885,377

44,422,937
3,721,724
443,805
48,588,466

84,448,036
32,445,892
21,772,321
59,224
138,725,473

114,317,365
24,129,963
14,916,990
833,471
154,197,789

264,665,420
39,789,516
11,821,782
316,276,718

249,432,642
34,108,095
4,302,556
287,843,293

140,962,244
5,036,234
1,285,501
147,283,979

108,499,180
3,766,960
112,266,140

405,627,664
44,825,750
13,107,283
463,560,697

357,931,822
34,108,095
8,069,516
400,109,433

425,116,814

393,452,616

177,169,356

160,854,606

602,286,170

554,307,222
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Ennismore
European Smaller
Companies Fund
31/12/2017
GBP
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating
shares at the beginning of the year/period

Ennismore
European Smaller
Companies Fund
31/12/2016
GBP

Ennismore
Global Equity
Fund
31/12/2017
GBP

Ennismore
Global Equity
Fund
31/12/2016*
GBP

Company Total
31/12/2017
GBP

Company Total
31/12/2016
GBP

520,144,645

315,465,281

149,031,738
(390,739)
148,640,999

56,597,089
(52,984,249)
3,612,840

180,799,494
(31,401,053)
149,398,441

365,509,177

315,465,281

154,635,468

23,409,837
(29,235,297)
(5,825,460)

31,767,756
(31,010,314)
757,442

33,187,252
(23,748,952)
9,438,300

Net increase in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares resulting from operations

35,637,001

49,286,454

2,633,401

5,994,469

38,270,402

55,280,923

Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders
at the end of the year/period

395,320,718

365,509,177

166,707,169

154,635,468

562,027,887

520,144,645

Share Transactions
Amounts received on sale of shares
less: Amount paid on repurchase of shares

3,9
3,9

*Ennismore Global Equity Fund launched 3 October 2016.
The accompanying notes and schedules form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Cash flows from operating activities:

Ennismore
European Smaller
Companies Fund

Ennismore
European Smaller
Companies Fund

Ennismore
Global Equity
Fund

Year ended
31/12/2017
GBP

Year ended
31/12/2016
GBP

Year ended
31/12/2017
GBP

Ennismore
Global Equity
Fund Company Total

Company Total

Year ended
31/12/2017
GBP

Year ended
31/12/2016
GBP

5,994,469

38,270,402

55,280,923

Period ended
31/12/2016*
GBP

Net increase in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating
shares from operations
Adjustments to reconcile net increase in net assets to cash provided by/(used in)
operating activities:
Movement in net financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss
Movement in debtors
Movement in creditors
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities

35,637,001

49,286,454

2,633,401

(25,680,244)
337,227
(900,524)
9,393,460

(20,837,764)
125,506
879,046
29,453,242

(28,859,110)
437,020
(1,915,680)
(27,704,369)

(109,021,263)
(443,805)
2,974,261
(100,496,338)

(54,539,354)
774,247
(2,816,204)
(18,310,909)

(129,859,027)
(318,299)
3,853,307
(71,043,096)

Cash flow from financial activities:
Proceeds from issue of redeemable participating shares
Payments on redemption of redeemable participating shares
Net cash (used in)/provided by financing activities

23,409,837
(29,235,297)
(5,825,460)

31,767,756
(31,010,314)
757,442

33,187,252
(23,748,952)
9,438,300

149,031,738
(390,739)
148,640,999

56,597,089
(52,984,249)
3,612,840

180,799,494
(31,401,053)
149,398,441

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Opening cash and cash equivalents
Ending cash and cash equivalents

3,568,000
105,219,657
108,787,657

30,210,684
75,008,973
105,219,657

(18,266,069)
48,144,661
29,878,592

48,144,661
48,144,661

(14,698,069)
153,364,318
138,666,249

78,355,345
75,008,973
153,364,318

Deposits with credit institutions
Cash held with counterparties
Cash equivalents
Ending cash and cash equivalents

66,027,657
20,987,679
21,772,321
108,787,657

69,894,428
20,408,239
14,916,990
105,219,657

18,420,379
11,458,213
29,878,592

44,422,937
3,721,724
48,144,661

84,448,036
32,445,892
21,772,321
138,666,249

114,317,365
24,129,963
14,916,990
153,364,318

(29)
5,932,774

164
5,358,358

(126)
2,278,775

118,781

(155)
8,211,549

164
5,477,139

Supplementary information
Bank interest paid
Dividends received

*Ennismore Global Equity Fund launched 3 October 2016.
The accompanying notes and schedules form an integral part of these financial statements.
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1.

Significant accounting policies

a)

Statement of compliance and basis of preparation
The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the European Union (“IFRS”).
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with those accounting standards and
Irish statute comprising the Companies Act 2014, the European Communities (Undertakings for
Collective Investment in Transferable Securities) Regulations 2011, as amended, and the Central
Bank (Supervision and Enforcement) Act 2013 (Section 48(1)) (Undertakings for Collective
Investment in Transferable Securities) Regulations 2015 (the "Central Bank UCITS Regulations").
These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention as modified by
the revaluation of certain financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.
The format of the Statement of Financial Position and the Statement of Comprehensive Income has
been amended from those set out in the Companies Act 2014 to reflect the nature of the Company’s
operations.
The Company has consistently applied the accounting policies used in the preparation of the
financial statements throughout all periods presented.
The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis.

b)

Use of estimates
The preparation of Financial Statements in accordance with IFRS requires the Board to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expense.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
All references to Net Assets throughout this document refer to Net Assets Attributable to Holders of
Redeemable Participating Shares, unless otherwise noted.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods. The significant estimates made in these financial statements relate to the
valuation of the Level 3 positions. Refer to note 15(c) and note 16 for details of these positions.
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1.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

c)

Financial Instruments at fair value through profit or loss
i) Classification:
All investments are classified as financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets and financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss at inception
(“FVTPL”) are those that are managed and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis in
accordance with the Company’s documented investment strategy.
A financial instrument is classified as held for trading if:
 It is acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near
term.
 On initial recognition, it is part of a portfolio that is managed together and for which there is
evidence of a recent pattern of short-term profit taking or;
 It is a derivative other than a designated and effective hedging instrument.
The Company classifies equities and bonds as designated at FVTPL and derivatives as held for
trading which is consistent with the Company’s investment strategy.
The Company’s policy is for the Investment Manager and the Board of Directors to evaluate the
information about these financial assets and liabilities on a fair value basis together with other
related financial information.
ii) Recognition/derecognition
Purchases and sales of investments are recognised on the trade date – the date on which the
Company commits to purchase or sell the investment. Investments are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or the Company has transferred all risks
and rewards of ownership.
Measurement
Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at
fair value. Transaction costs are expensed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Subsequent
to initial recognition, all financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
are measured at fair value. Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of the “financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss” category are presented in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income in the period in which they arise.
iii)

Contracts for differences (CFDs) which do not reset are valued at fair value with reference to the
close of business market price of the underlying stock. All other CFDs are valued as the difference
between the close of business market price at year end and the reset price. Margin is paid at each
fair value point to/from the broker thereby determining the new reset price.
The Administrator may adjust the value of any such assets if, in relation to currency, marketability
and such other considerations as it deems relevant, it considers that such adjustment is required to
reflect the fair value thereof with the approval of the Depositary.
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1.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

c)

Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss (continued)
iii) Measurement (continued)
Realised gains and losses on disposal of investments held for trading and unrealised gains and
losses on valuation of investments held for trading at year end are calculated on a first in first out
(“FIFO”) basis and are included in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
iv) Fair value measurement
“Fair Value” is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its
absence, the most advantageous market to which the Funds have access at that date. The fair value
of a liability reflects its non-performance risk.
The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as publically traded
derivatives and trading securities) is based on quoted market prices at the Statement of Financial
Position date. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Company is the last
traded price; the appropriate quoted market price for financial liabilities is the last traded price.
Financial instruments for which quotations are not readily available will be valued at fair value as
determined by the Investment Manager, based on consultation with the Administrator, and the
prices of these financial assets are reviewed and approved by the Directors. In determining fair
value, the Investment Manager and the Administrator consider among other matters, the basis of
cost, prices of recent transactions of the same securities in similar volume under appropriate market
conditions, and the impact of any premium or discount which might for any reason be applied to
value.
The Funds recognise transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the beginning of the
reporting period during which the change has occurred.
v) Amortised cost measurement
The amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the financial
asset or financial liability is measured at initial recognition, minus principal repayments, plus or
minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method of any difference between
the initial amount and the maturity amount, minus any reduction for impairment.
vi) Impairment
A financial asset not classified at FVTPL is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether
there is objective evidence of impairment. A financial asset or group of financial assets is
“impaired” if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset(s) and the loss event(s) had an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that asset(s) that can be estimated reliably.
Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired includes significant financial difficulty of the
borrower or issuer, default or delinquency by a borrower, restructuring of the amount due on terms
that the Funds would not otherwise consider, indications that a borrower or issuer will enter
bankruptcy, or adverse changes in the payment status of the borrowers.
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1.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

c)

Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss (continued)
vi) Impairment (continued)
An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated as the
difference between its carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. Losses are recognised in profit or loss and
are reflected in an allowance account against receivables. Interest on the impaired asset continues
to be recognised. If an event occurring after the impairment was recognised causes the amount of
impairment loss to decrease, then the decrease in impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.
vii) Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of
financial position when, and only when, the Funds have a legal right to offset the amounts and they
intend either to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
Income and expenses are presented on a net basis for gains and losses from financial instruments at
FVTPL and for foreign exchange gains and losses.

d)

Income
Interest income and expense are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income for all debt
instruments and are reflected in movement in fair value through profit or loss. Bond interest
income and expense are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income using the effective
interest rate method.
Dividends are credited to the Statement of Comprehensive Income on the dates on which the
relevant securities are listed as "ex-dividend". Dividend income is shown gross of any withholding
taxes, which is disclosed separately in the Statement of Comprehensive Income, and net of any tax
credits.
Bank interest income and expense is recognised on an accruals basis.

e)

Functional and Presentation Currency
The Company’s financial statements are presented in GBP Sterling (“GBP £”), which is the
Company’s functional currency. All amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousand, unless
otherwise indicated.
Foreign currency transactions are translated into GBP £ on the Statement of Comprehensive Income
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Assets and liabilities on the
Statement of Financial Position are translated into GBP £ using exchange rates in effect at the
reporting date.

f)

Company total for financial statements
The total figures in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and Statement of Financial Position
represent the sum of the Sub-Funds on a combined basis excluding the effects of cross-holdings if
any and not a consolidated total. The assets of one Sub-Fund cannot be used to settle the liabilities
of another. There are no investments by Sub-Funds in the units of other Sub-Funds at 31 December
2017 and 31 December 2016, or during the years then ended.
40

ENNISMORE SMALLER COMPANIES PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 December 2017 (continued…)
1.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

g)

Redeemable Participating Shares
Redeemable participating shares are redeemable at the shareholder’s option and are classified as
financial liabilities. The redeemable shares can be purchased by the Company at any time for cash
equal to a proportionate share of the Fund’s Net Asset Value.
The redeemable shares are carried at the redemption amount that is payable at the Statement of
Financial Position date if the shareholders exercised their right to have the Company repurchase
their shares. In accordance with the Prospectus, the Company is contractually obliged to redeem
shares at dealing prices.

h)

Deposits held with credit institutions
Cash and bank balances comprise deposits with banks. Deposits are held at amortised cost and are
presented in the Statement of Financial Position. Amortised cost approximates fair value.

i)

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise highly liquid financial assets with maturities of three months or
less from the date of acquisition that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in their fair value
and are used by the Funds in the management of short-term commitments, other than cash collateral
provided in respect of derivatives and securities borrowing transactions.

j)

Cash held with counterparties
Cash held with counterparties is collateral deposited against contracts for difference held with
counterparties.

k)

Transaction Costs
Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or
disposal of a financial asset or financial liability. An incremental cost is one that would not have
been incurred if the entity had not acquired, issued or disposed of the financial instrument.

l)

Operating Expenses
The Company is responsible for all normal operating expenses including audit fees, stamp and other
duties and charges incurred on the acquisition and realisation of investments. Operating expenses
are recognised on an accruals basis.

m)

New/revised standards and interpretations not yet effective
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
IFRS 9 issued in November 2009 introduced new requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assets. IFRS 9 was subsequently amended in October 2010 to include
requirements for the classification and measurement of financial liabilities and for derecognition,
and in November 2013 to include the new requirements for general hedge accounting.
Another revised version of IFRS 9 was issued in July 2014 mainly to include a) impairment
requirements for financial assets and b) limited amendments to the classification and measurement
requirements by introducing a “fair value through other comprehensive income” (FVTOCI)
measurement category for certain simple debt instruments.
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1.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

m)

New/revised standards and interpretations not yet effective (continued)
Key Requirements of IFRS 9 (continued)
All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of IAS 39 “Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement” are required to be subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair
value. Specifically, debt investments that are held within a business model whose objective is to
hold the financial asset to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding are generally
measured at amortised cost at the end of the subsequent accounting periods.
Debt instruments that are held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and that have contractual terms of the
financial asset giving rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding, are measured at FVTOCI. All other debt investments
and equity investments are measured at their fair value at the end of subsequent accounting periods.
In addition, under IFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes
in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not held for trading) in other comprehensive
income, with only dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.
The Standard currently has a mandatory effective date for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018, with earlier application permitted. This effective date is subject to confirmation and
enactment.
The Directors anticipate that the adoption of this standard or other interpretations currently in issue
but not yet effective will not have a material impact on the financial statements of the Company in
the period of application. The Company has not adopted any new standards or interpretations that
are not mandatory.
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
IFRS 15 replaces IAS 11 and IAS 18 and is effective from 1 January 2018. It established principals
for reporting useful information to users of Financial Statements about the nature, amount, timing
and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from an entity’s contracts with customers. The
Directors do not expect this to have a material impact on the Financial Statements.

2.

Taxation
The Company is an investment undertaking as defined in Section 739B of the Taxes Consolidation
Act 1997, as amended. The Company will not be liable to tax in respect of its income and gains
other than the occurrence of a chargeable event. Generally, a chargeable event arises on any
distribution, redemption, repurchase, cancellation or transfer of shares on the ending of a ‘‘relevant
period’’. A ‘‘relevant period’’ being an eight year period beginning with the acquisition of shares
by the shareholders, and each subsequent period of eight years being immediately after the
preceding relevant period.
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2.

Taxation (continued)
A gain on a chargeable event does not arise in respect of:
(i)

a Shareholder who is not an Irish resident and not ordinarily resident in Ireland at the time of
the chargeable event, provided the necessary signed statutory declaration is held by the
Company; or
(ii) certain exempted Irish resident investors who have provided the Company with the necessary
signed statutory declarations; or
(iii) any transaction in relation to Shares held in a recognised clearing system as designated by the
order of the Irish Revenue Commissioners; or
(iv) certain transfers between spouses and former spouses; or
(v) an exchange of Shares arising on a qualifying amalgamation or reconstruction of the
Company with another Company; or
(vi) an exchange of Shares representing one Sub-Fund for another Sub-Fund of the Company.
In the absence of an appropriate declaration, the Company will be liable to Irish Tax on the
occurrence of a chargeable event. There were no chargeable events during the year under review.
Capital Gains, dividends and interest received by the Funds may be subject to withholding taxes
imposed by the country of origin, and such taxes may not be fully recoverable by the Funds or its
Shareholders.
Additionally, the Funds may receive relevant distributions from companies resident in Ireland
without the deduction of Dividend Withholding Tax (DWT).
3.

Purchase or Redemption Charge
A redemption charge of 2% of redemptions from Ennismore European Smaller Companies Fund is
payable to that Fund. No charge is currently being made on subscriptions. This charge is intended to
cover the costs of the Fund investing or divesting in the underlying markets as a consequence of
investor activity.
The charge which amounted to GBP 596,639 (2016: GBP 632,864) is netted against the amounts
paid on repurchase of Shares in the Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Redeemable
Participating Shareholders on page 35.
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4.

Net gains/ (losses) on investments at fair value through profit or loss

Ennismore European Smaller Companies Fund
Year ended
31/12/2017
GBP
58,908,646
(26,232,075)
32,676,571

Year ended
31/12/2016
GBP
37,071,187
7,740,833
44,812,020

Net movement in unrealised appreciation/(depreciation) on investments
at fair value for the year
Net movement in unrealised appreciation/(depreciation) on CFDs
Total unrealised gain on investments at fair value through profit or loss

16,000,409
4,078,606
20,079,015

24,313,396
(11,915,213)
12,398,183

Foreign exchange gains for the year
Net gains on investments at fair value through profit or loss

2,665,786
55,421,372

10,833,386
68,043,589

The net gains on investments at fair value through profit or loss comprise:
Gains realised on investments at fair value sold
(Losses)/Gains realised on CFDs sold
Total realised gains on investments at fair value through profit or loss

Ennismore Global Equity Fund

Gains realised on investments at fair value sold
(Losses)/Gains realised on CFDs sold
Total realised gains on investments at fair value through profit or loss

Year ended
31/12/2017
GBP
8,923,216
(3,050,268)
5,872,948

Period ended
31/12/2016
GBP
5,358,816
2,520,971
7,879,787

Net movement in unrealised appreciation/(depreciation) on investments
at fair value for the year/period
Net movement in unrealised (depreciation)/appreciation on CFDs
Total unrealised gain on investments at fair value through profit or loss

11,227,691
(8,788,129)
2,439,562

1,571,933
556,435
2,128,368

1,085,247
9,397,757

(467,494)
9,540,661

The net gains on investments at fair value through profit or loss comprise:

Foreign exchange gains/(losses) for the year/period
Net gains on investments at fair value through profit or loss

The realised gain/loss from investments at fair value represents the difference between the
transaction price, or the carrying amount of a financial instrument at the beginning of the year and
its sale price/settlement price. The unrealised gain/loss represents the difference between the
transaction price or carrying amount of a financial instrument at the beginning of the year and its
carrying amount at the end of the year. Amounts move out of unrealised gain/loss into realised
gain/loss once the investments are sold.
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5.

Other Expenses

Ennismore European Smaller Companies Fund
Note
Other expenses
Directors' fees
Directors' and officers' insurance
German tax fee
Transaction fee
Audit fee
Swiss representative fees
Paying agent fees
Legal fees
Other

10
11
11

Ennismore Global Equity Fund
Note
Other expenses
Directors' fees
Directors' and officers' insurance
German tax fee
Audit fee
Swiss representative fees
Paying agent fees
Legal fees
Other

10
11
11

Year ended
31/12/2017
GBP

Year ended
31/12/2016
GBP

(37,500)
(3,176)
(5,657)
(10,875)
(8,057)
(1,197)
(32,355)
(158,284)
(257,101)

(65,625)
(5,329)
(3,953)
(882)
(16,658)
(7,247)
(1,091)
(39,056)
(71,887)
(211,728)

Year ended
31/12/2017
GBP

Period ended
31/12/2016
GBP

(37,500)
(4,348)
(7,521)
(10,875)
(4,028)
(1,219)
(17,917)
(57,467)
(140,875)

(9,375)
(6,642)
(1,317)
(4,217)
(3,999)
(2,745)
(8,434)
(33,044)
(69,773)

Transaction costs for the year of GBP 1,353,527 (2016: GBP 1,462,035) have been included in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income.
6.

Debtors

Ennismore European Smaller Companies Fund
Accrued income
Sale of securities awaiting settlement
Other debtors
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31/12/2017
GBP

31/12/2016
GBP

25,709
26,503
227
52,439

21,252
359,513
8,901
389,666
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6.

Debtors (continued)
Ennismore Global Equity Fund
Accrued income
Sale of securities awaiting settlement
Other debtors

7.

31/12/2017
GBP

31/12/2016
GBP

6,632
153
6,785

6,137
435,571
2,097
443,805

Deposits with credit institutions
All cash balances are held with The Northern Trust Company, (TNTC), which is a 100% indirect
wholly owned subsidiary of Northern Trust Corporation which has an S&P credit rating of A+
(2016: A+).

8.

9.

Creditors

Ennismore European Smaller Companies Fund

31/12/2017
GBP

31/12/2016
GBP

Accrued expenses
Subscriptions received in advance
Other creditors

(8,563,250)
(292,226)
(8,855,476)

(9,234,534)
(298,762)
(222,704)
(9,756,000)

Ennismore Global Equity Fund

31/12/2017
GBP

31/12/2016
GBP

Accrued expenses
Other creditors

(979,802)
(78,779)
(1,058,581)

(2,815,869)
(158,392)
(2,974,261)

Share capital
The Company has authorised share capital divided into 300,000,000 Shares of no par value and
30,000 Management Shares of EUR 1.2697 each. The Company has met the minimum capital
requirement whereby the Company must, at all times, maintain a minimum capital requirement
equivalent to EUR 300,000. The table on the next page shows the movement in shares as at 31
December 2017 and 31 December 2016 for both Funds.
Management shares
The issued share capital of Ennismore European Smaller Companies Fund includes EUR 8.8879
represented by 7 Management shares of EUR 1.2697 each, which have been issued to the
Investment Manager and its nominees and on which EUR 2.2222 has been paid up. Management
shares do not entitle the holders to any dividend and on a winding up entitle the holder to receive the
amount paid up thereon but not otherwise to participate in the assets of the Company. The
Management shares do not form part of the net assets attributable to redeemable participating
shareholders. They are thus disclosed by way of this note only. In the opinion of the Directors, this
disclosure reflects the nature of the Company’s business as an investment fund.
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9.

Share capital (continued)
Redeemable Participating Shares
Each Shareholder shall have one vote in relation to any matter relating to the Company which is
submitted to Shareholders for a vote by show of hands.
Each Share gives the holder one vote in relation to any matter relating to the Company which is
submitted to Shareholders for a vote by poll. All Shares have equal voting rights.
The movement in the number of participating shares is as follows:
Ennismore European Smaller Companies Fund

Shares in issue at the beginning of the year
Subscriptions during the year
Redemptions during the year
Shares in issue at the end of the year

Shares in issue at the beginning of the year
Subscriptions during the year
Redemptions during the year
Shares in issue at the end of the year

GBP "A"
2017

GBP "B"
2017

1,909,244
53,739
(45,797)
1,917,186

991,941
-

GBP "A"
2016

GBP "B"
2016

1,933,254
84,017
(108,027)
1,909,244

1,093,828
273,614
(375,501)
991,941

GBP
2017

GBP "A"
2017

EUR
2017

CHF
2017

1,365,831
1,143,956
(167,128)
2,342,659

3,866,735
474,126
(665,115)
3,675,746

9,521,654
1,459,112
(1,360,356)
9,620,410

1,368,695
406,325
(384,038)
1,390,982

GBP
2016

GBP "A"
2016

EUR
2016

CHF
2016

1,367,291
(1,460)
1,365,831

3,869,233
(2,498)
3,866,735

9,563,547
(41,893)
9,521,654

1,369,798
(1,103)
1,368,695

-

991,941

EUR "A"
2017

EUR "B"
2017

1,149,507 6,245,414
191,200
754,018
(106,506) (1,229,039)
1,234,201 5,770,393
EUR "A"
2016

EUR "B"
2016

939,421 6,107,306
243,320
837,950
(33,234) (699,842)
1,149,507 6,245,414

Ennismore Global Equity Fund

Shares in issue at the beginning of the year
Subscriptions during the year
Redemptions during the year
Shares in issue at the end of the year

Shares in issue at the beginning of the period
Subscriptions during the period
Redemptions during the period
Shares in issue at the end of the period
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10.

Related party transactions
Mr Geoff Oldfield is a Director and Shareholder of the Funds. He is also a Director of Ennismore
Fund Management Limited which is the Investment Manager of the Funds. Mr. Andrew Blair is a
Director and Shareholder of the Funds. He is also a Director of Ennismore Fund Management
Limited which is the Investment Manager of the Funds.
The Directors earned GBP 75,000 (2016: GBP 75,000) during the year for providing their services,
and at year end GBP 75,000 (2016: GBP 75,000) was due to the Directors. Mr. Oldfield and Mr.
Blair do not receive a fee for their services as Directors of the Funds.
The following Directors held Shares in the Company at year end:
Ennismore European Smaller Companies Fund
No. of GBP
No. of GBP
No. of EUR
No. of EUR
Class A Shares
Class A Shares Class A Shares Class A Shares
31/12/2017
31/12/2016
31/12/2017
31/12/2016
Nicholas Durlacher*
6,190
6,190
Lars Gårdö**
5,730
5,730
536
Matthew Minch***
3,836
3,836
537
Geoff Oldfield****
130,442
130,299
Paul McNaughton
41,823
41,285
Andrew Blair*****
11,846
11,846
*of which 300 shares were held through his ISA administered by Rathbone (2016: 300)
** of which 5,038 shares were held through his own company; Dikarsbo Holding AB (2016: 5,038)
***all shares registered under Fundsettle EOC Nominees (2016: all shares)
****of which 19,554 shares were held through his Self Invested Pension Plan administered by Sippdeal (2016: 19,554)
and 6,597 shares were held through his ISA’s administered by Killik & Co (2016: 6,597) and 25,947 shares are held by
close family members (2016: 25,804)
***** as at 31 December 2017, 8,580 shares were held through this Self Invested Pension Plan administered by Sippdeal
(2016: 8,580)

None of the Directors had a service contract with the Company. As at 31 December 2017 Geoff
Oldfield had a beneficial interest in 130,442 (2016: 130,299) shares and a non-beneficial interest in
15,196 (2016: 15,196) shares through his connected persons. The Secretary did not hold any interest
in the shares of the Company at any time during the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).
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Related party transactions (continued)
Ennismore Global Equity Fund
No. of GBP
Class A Shares
31/12/2017
Nicholas Durlacher*
1,500
Lars Gårdö**
Matthew Minch
Geoff Oldfield***
1,048,992
Paul McNaughton
Andrew Blair
14,925

No. of GBP
Class A Shares
31/12/2016
1,040,000
14,925

No. of GBP
Class Shares
31/12/2017
14,747
-

No. of GBP
Class Shares
31/12/2016
14,747
-

* all shares were held through his ISA administered by Rathbone
** all shares were held through his own company; Dikarsbo Holding AB
***of which 800,000 shares were held in his own name and 3,332 shares were held through his ISAs administered by
Killik & Co and 245,659 shares are held by close family members (2016: of which 800,000 shares were held in his own
name and 240,000 shares held through connected persons)

The Investment Manager earned GBP 10,909,487 (2016: GBP 7,543,348) during the year for
providing these services, and at year end GBP 884,590 (2016: GBP 818,593) was due to the
Investment Manager. The Investment Manager earned a performance fee during the year of GBP
8,262,366 (2016: GBP 10,690,288) of which GBP 8,262,366 was payable at year end.
The Investment Manager held 68,083 GBP A shares in Ennismore European Smaller Companies
Fund and 240,100 GBP shares in Ennismore Global Equity Fund as at 31 December 2017 (2016:
68,083 GBP A Shares in Ennismore European Smaller Companies Fund and 613,640 GBP shares in
Ennismore Global Equity Fund). Parties related to the Investment Manager held 29,606 GBP A
shares in Ennismore European Smaller Companies Fund and 352,628 GBP B shares as at 31
December 2017 (2016: GBP 43,617 A shares and 352,628 GBP B shares) and held 94,340 GBP
shares in Ennismore Global Equity Fund.
11.

Significant agreements
Investment Manager
Ennismore Fund Management Limited has been appointed to act as Investment Manager pursuant
to the Investment Management Agreement dated 12 January 1999. The Funds pay the Investment
Manager a basic investment management fee at an annual rate of 2% of the Net Asset Value of the
Company (plus VAT, if any), which accrues daily and is payable monthly in arrears.
The management fee is calculated on the basis of the Net Asset Value of the Funds on the last
Dealing Day of the relevant month. The Investment Manager is also entitled to a performance
related management fee payable in arrears in respect of each calendar year, if the Funds meet
certain performance objectives, as set out on the next page.
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Significant agreements (continued)
Performance fee in respect of the ‘‘A’’ shares:
The key principle underlying the performance fee is that a performance fee should only be charged
on the generation of an absolute return and that any negative performance should be fully recouped
before a performance fee is payable.
On the basis of this principle, the Directors have specified the following definition:
The “Benchmark” or “High Water Mark” is the value in pounds sterling for GBP “A” Shares or in
Euros for EUR “A” Shares on the last Dealing or Valuation Day of each calendar year which the
Net Asset Value per “A” Share on the same day must exceed in order for a performance fee to be
paid. The method of calculating the Benchmark is set out below.
The Benchmark will be an amount equal to the Net Asset Value per “A” Share on the last Dealing
Day of the latest year in which a performance fee was paid, or if no performance fee has previously
been paid in respect of that type of share, the Benchmark will be the initial offer price for that type
of Share.
If the Net Asset Value per “A” Share (before deducting the amount of any accrued liability for a
performance fee) at the end of a calendar year exceeds the Benchmark, a performance fee is
payable.
If the Net Asset Value per “A” Share at the end of a calendar year is lower than the Benchmark, no
performance fee is payable.
When a performance fee is payable, it is calculated in the following way:
the Net Asset Value per “A” Share less the Benchmark
multiplied by
20%
multiplied by
the average of the number of “A” Shares in issue on each Dealing Day during the relevant
calendar year.
The performance fee will accrue and be taken into account in the calculation of the Net Asset Value
per “A” Share on each Dealing Day. If a Shareholder redeems “A” Shares prior to the end of a
calendar year any accrued performance fee in respect of such “A” Shares will remain in the Fund to
the benefit of remaining Shareholders if a performance fee is not payable in respect of that year.
The price of the GBP “A” Shares is also quoted in Euro. The performance fee charged in respect of
these shares is based on the appreciation of the share price in GBP.
Performance Fee in respect of the other share classes:
The Investment Manager is also entitled to receive a performance fee from the Funds in respect of
the other share classes calculated on a Share-by-Share basis so that each Share is charged a
performance fee which equates precisely with that Share’s performance.
This method of calculation ensures that (i) any performance fee paid to the Investment Manager is
charged only to those Shares which have appreciated in value, (ii) all holders of Shares have the
same amount of capital per Share at risk in the Funds, and (iii) all Shares have the same Net Asset
Value per Share.
The initial offer price of the Shares will be the starting price for the calculation of the relevant
performance fee to which the provisions below will apply.
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Significant agreements (continued)
Performance Fee in respect of the other share classes (continued):
The first calculation period for the performance fee shall begin following the end of the initial offer
period for the Shares and finish on 31 December of that calendar year (the “Initial Calculation
Period”). Thereafter, the performance fee in respect of each Share will be calculated in respect of
each calendar year (each a “Subsequent Calculation Period”) (the Initial Calculation Period and
each Subsequent Calculation Period are each a “Calculation Period”). The performance fee will be
deemed to accrue on a daily basis as at each Valuation Day.
For each Calculation Period, the performance fee in respect of each Share will be equal to 20% of
the appreciation in the Net Asset Value per Share during that Calculation Period above the Base Net
Asset Value per Share. The Base Net Asset Value per Share is the greater of the Net Asset Value
per Share at the time of issue of that Share and the highest Net Asset Value per Share achieved as at
the end of any previous Calculation Period (if any) during which such Share was in issue. The
performance fee in respect of each Calculation Period will be calculated by reference to the Net
Asset Value before deduction for any accrued performance fees.
The performance fee will normally be payable to the Investment Manager in arrears within 14
calendar days of the end of each Calculation Period. However, in the case of Shares redeemed
during a Calculation Period, the accrued Performance Fee in respect of those Shares will be payable
within 14 calendar days after the date of redemption. In the event of a partial redemption, Shares
will be treated as redeemed on a first in, first out (“FIFO”) basis.
Administrator
Northern Trust International Fund Administration Services (Ireland) Limited is paid an
administration charge and fees in respect of its duties as Administrator and Registrar by the Fund.
The administration charge accrues and is calculated daily and is paid monthly in arrears at a rate of
0.07% per annum on the first £50 million of the Net Asset Value of each Fund on the last Dealing
Day of each month and 0.06% per annum on the Net Asset Value of each Fund in excess of £50
million. This is subject to a minimum fee of £5,000 per month for each Fund with up to four
Classes of Shares and £5,250 per month for each Fund with five or more Classes of Shares. The
Administrator is also entitled to Shareholder dealing fees of £15 per Shareholder transaction and a
Shareholder account fee of £15 per Shareholder account. The Administrator is also entitled to an
annual fee of £7,500 per Fund for German tax reporting services. The fees payable to the
Administrator may be varied from time to time by agreement with the Company subject to the
minimum disclosed above. Any such variation will be notified to Shareholders. The fees are
exclusive of value added tax (if any) payable by the Fund. The total Administrator fees charged for
the year was GBP 399,265 (2016: GBP 253,398) which includes Transfer agency fees charged for
the year of GBP 62,545 (2016: GBP 22,477).
Depositary
Northern Trust Fiduciary Services (Ireland) Limited acts as Depositary to the Funds (the
“Depositary”). The Depositary is paid by each Fund with fees accruing and calculated daily and
payable monthly in arrears. Fees are charged at a rate of 0.0225% per annum of the NAV of each
Fund subject to a monthly minimum fee of £1,000.
Additionally, the Depositary is entitled to be reimbursed for all sub-custody fees and charges
(charged at normal commercial rates). The fees payable to the Depositary may be varied from time
to time by agreement with the Company.
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Significant agreements (continued)
Depositary (continued)
Any increase in the fees payable will be notified to Shareholders. The fees are exclusive of value
added tax (if any) payable by the Funds. The total Depositary fees charged for the year was GBP
131,266 (2016: GBP 178,205). The Sub-Custody fees charged for the year was GBP 156,252
(2016: GBP 96,314).
Auditor’s Remuneration
For the year ended 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, the remuneration for all work
carried out for the Company by the statutory auditor or the statutory audit firm is shown below:
Ennismore European Smaller Companies Fund

Audit of statutory accounts
Other non-audit services
Total fees

31/12/2017
GBP
(10,875)
(5,657)

31/12/2016
GBP
(16,658)
(3,953)

(16,532)

(20,611)

31/12/2017
GBP
(10,875)
(7,521)
(18,396)

31/12/2016
GBP
(4,217)
(1,317)
(5,534)

Ennismore Global Equity Fund

Audit of statutory accounts
Other non-audit services
Total fees

There were no other assurance services, tax advisory services or other non-audit services provided
by the auditor of the Company
12.

Financial instruments
The Funds may hold a number of financial instruments which comprise:
1.
2.
3.
4.

Equity shares held in accordance with the Fund’s investment objective and policies.
Cash, liquid resources and short term debtors and creditors that arise directly from its
operations.
Contracts for differences (CFDs) - see page 53 for accounting policies in relation to valuation
of CFDs.
Debt instruments with a minimum credit rating of A from Moodys.

All financial assets and liabilities held at 31 December 2017 have been fair valued based on quoted
market prices, with the exception of the instruments disclosed as Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy
table in note 16.
13.

Use of Derivatives
At the discretion of the Directors, the Funds may use financial derivative instruments including, in
particular, contracts for difference (CFDs) for investment purposes, to obtain short exposure to
equity securities that the Investment Manager believes are overvalued or to reduce transaction costs.
While the prudent use of such a derivative can be beneficial, derivatives also include risks different
from, and in certain case greater than, the risks presented by more traditional investments.
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Use of Derivatives (continued)
The Funds may be leveraged through the use of financial derivative instruments which may give
net market exposure to equities of up to 120% of Net Asset Value for the Ennismore European
Smaller Companies Fund and up to 130% for the Ennismore Global Equity Fund.
Gross equity exposure is limited to 200% of NAV. Please refer to pages 23, 25 and 59 for the
actual gross exposure for 2017.
The Investment Manager employs a risk management process which enables it to monitor and
measure the risks attached to financial derivative instruments, and details of this process have been
provided to the Central Bank. The Investment Manager will not utilise financial derivative
instruments which have not been included in the risk management process until such time as a
revised risk management process has been submitted and approved by the Central Bank.

14.

Contracts for difference (CFDs)
The Funds use Contracts for Difference (CFDs). These are used primarily to obtain short exposure
but long positions are also taken through the use of CFDs.
CFDs are agreements between the Company and third parties which allow the Company to acquire
an exposure to the price movement of specific securities without actually purchasing the securities.
Upon entering into a CFD, the Company is normally required to deposit with a broker an initial
cash margin equal to a certain percentage of the contract amount.
Variation margin payments are made or received by the Company depending upon the fluctuation
in the value of the underlying securities. While the contract or notional amounts reflect the
involvement of the Company in these financial instruments, risks arise from possible adverse
movements in foreign exchange rates and the prices of the underlying securities.
The total notional amount of CFDs held by the Funds at year end was GBP 266,527,355 (2016: GBP
191,213,773) (both long and short positions). The total dividends paid on CFDs for the year ended 31
December 2017 was GBP 3,753,958 (2016: GBP 2,238,410).

15.

Risk management policies and procedures
In accordance with IFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures”, this note details the way in which
the Funds manage risks associated with the use of Financial Instruments.
Risk Management Process
As an investment company, the management of financial instruments is fundamental to
management of the Funds’ business. The Funds’ risk management process is managed by
Ennismore Fund Management Limited (“Ennismore”) in its capacity as Investment Manager.
The Administrator, values all financial derivative instruments positions on a daily basis as part of
the determination of the daily NAV of the Funds.
The oversight of these functions is carried out both by the Depositary and by the Board of
Directors. Ennismore is organised with distinct segregation of responsibility between portfolio
managers and investment administration personnel.
Global Exposure on the investment portfolio is calculated using the Commitment Method as 100%
of the market value of the equity securities underlying each financial derivative instrument.
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Risk management policies and procedures (continued)
Risk Management Process (continued)
The risks specific to the investment portfolio of the Funds are managed primarily by the relevant
portfolio managers reporting to the Chief Executive of Ennismore.
Risk and operational matters are overseen by the Chief Operating Officer of the Investment
Manager.
As defined in IFRS 7, risk can be separated into the following components: market risk (including
currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
Risk Management Process for the Funds
Each type of risk is discussed in turn and qualitative and quantitative analyses are provided where
relevant to provide an understanding of the risk management methods used by the Investment
Manager and the Board of Directors.
Ennismore European Smaller Companies Fund is managed with an absolute return objective and
invests primarily in European equities issued by small capitalisation companies, although an
element of the portfolio may be invested in large capitalisation equities and/or globally.
Ennismore Global Equity Fund will seek to achieve its capital growth objective primarily through
exposure to equity securities, of companies that are listed or traded on Recognised Markets in
developed markets on a global basis.
The Funds also use Over the Counter Financial Derivative Instruments (“OTC FDI”) to obtain long
and short exposure to such equity securities.
The Investment Manager manages a diversified portfolio on behalf of the Funds which should serve
to mitigate the impact on the Net Asset Value of the crystallisation of any risk affecting a particular
market or company.

(a)

Market risk
This is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: currency risk,
interest rate risk and market price risk.
(i) Currency risk
Currency risk is defined as the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.
This risk arises on financial instruments that are denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency in which they are measured. Currency risk does not arise from financial instruments that
are non-monetary items or from financial instruments denominated in the functional currency.
The net assets in the Funds as at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 are denominated in
currencies as shown on the next page:
At 31 December 2017, had the exchange rate between GBP and the currencies set out in the table
on the below increased or decreased by 5%, which management considers reasonably possible
fluctuations, with all other variables remaining constant, the income and net assets attributable to
holders of redeemable participating preference shares would have increased or decreased by the
amounts shown on the next page. The analysis is performed on the same basis for 31 December
2016.
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Risk management policies and procedures (continued…)
Risk Management Process for the Funds (continued)

(a)

Market risk (continued)
(i) Currency risk (continued)
Ennismore European Smaller Companies Fund

% of Fund
GBP
2017
0.98
0.14
(0.01)

Effect of currency
exposure on profit
and net assets
GBP
2017
194,073
26,489
(2,064)

Total
GBP
2016
680,284
600,125
-

% of Fund
GBP
2016
0.19
0.16
-

Effect of currency
exposure on profit
and net assets
GBP
2016
34,014
30,006
-

AUD
CAD
DKK

Currency
Australian Dollar
Canadian Dollar
Danish Kroner

Total
GBP
2017
3,881,462
529,772
(41,289)

EUR
HKD
JPY

Euro

191,863,865

48.53

9,593,193

188,597,591

51.60

9,429,880

Hong Kong Dollar
Japanese Yen

1,912,269
(11,294)

0.48
(0.00)

95,613
(565)

6,130,737
-

1.68
-

306,537
-

New Zeland Dollar

53,508

0.01

2,675

-

-

-

Norwegian Krone
Pounds Sterling
Swedish Krona
Swiss Franc
US Dollar

30,411,992
151,786,711
3,413,996
(1,851,829)
13,371,555

7.69
38.41
0.86
(0.47)
3.38

1,520,600
170,700
(92,591)
668,578

19,743,503
135,176,700
(1,840,341)
(275,538)
16,696,116

5.40
36.98
(0.50)
(0.08)
4.57

987,175
(92,017)
(13,777)
834,806

395,320,718

100.00

12,176,701

365,509,177

100.00

11,516,624

Total
GBP
2017
11,859,858
1,710,572
46,433,691
1,569,173
(27,684)
9,908,504

% of Fund
GBP
2017
7.11
1.03
27.85
0.94
(0.02)
5.94

Effect of currency
exposure on profit
and net assets
GBP
2017
592,993
85,529
2,321,685
78,458
(1,384)
495,425

Total
GBP
2016
2,101,025
1,475,753
66,955,238
4,103,141
6,150,108

% of Fund
GBP
2016
1.36
0.95
43.30
2.65
3.98

Effect of currency
exposure on profit
and net assets
GBP
2016
105,051
73,788
3,347,762
205,157
307,505

9,431

-

-

-

NZD
NOK
GBP
SEK
CHF
USD

Ennismore Global Equity Fund

AUD
CAD
EUR
HKD
JPY
NOK

Currency
Australian Dollar
Canadian Dollar
Euro
Hong Kong Dollar
Japanese Yen
Norwegian Krone

NZD New Zealand Dollar
Pounds Sterling
GBP

188,629

0.11

43,511,851

26.11

-

39,871,436

25.78

-

SEK

Swedish Krona

1,869,850

1.12

93,493

2,623,569

1.70

131,178

CHF

Swiss Franc

(207,780)

(0.12)

(10,389)

198,301

0.13

9,915

USD

US Dollar

49,890,505

29.93

2,494,525

31,156,897

20.15

1,557,845

166,707,169

100.00

6,159,766

154,635,468

100.00

5,738,201
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Risk Management Process for the Funds (continued)

(a)

Market risk (continued)
(i) Currency risk (continued)
NAV analysis
Ennismore European Smaller Companies Fund
GBP Share Classes
EUR Share Classes
Ennismore Global Equity Fund
GBP Share Classes
EUR Share Class
CHF Share Class

31/12/2017
GBP
266,204,179
129,116,539
395,320,718

31/12/2016
GBP
241,929,439
123,579,738
365,509,177

31/12/2017
GBP
64,637,700
90,229,722
11,839,747
166,707,169

31/12/2016
GBP
55,364,395
87,658,847
11,612,226
154,635,468

Currency risk is monitored by the Investment Manager but is a consequence of equity investment
decisions made for the Funds. The Investment Manager does not seek to actively hedge currency
exposures arising from its equity portfolio.
(ii) Interest rate risk
This is defined as the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. This risk arises on financial instruments whose
fair value or future cash flows are affected by changes in interest rates.
The majority of the Funds’ financial assets are equity shares and other instruments which neither
pay interest nor have a maturity date. Due to the nature of its investments, the key components of
market risk are market price risk and currency risk.
The Funds’ exposure to interest rate risk is limited to the impact on rates of interest earned on its
uninvested cash balances and a number of treasury bills positions that have maturities of less than
90 days and the indirect impact of interest rate changes on equity prices and foreign exchange rates.
A sensitivity analysis reflects how net assets attributable to holders of redeemable shares would
have been affected by changes in the relevant risk variable that were reasonably possible at the
reporting date. As noted above, due to the nature of the investments, the Company’s exposure to
interest bearing financial assets and liabilities is not considered significant. As a result, the Funds
are not subject to significant amounts of risk due to fluctuations in prevailing levels of market
interest rates.
(iii) Market price risk
This is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk and currency
risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to an individual financial instrument or
its issuer, or by other factors affecting similar financial instruments traded in the market.
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(a)

Market risk (continued)
(iii) Market price risk (continued)
The portfolio’s exposure to market price risk is equivalent to the fair value of the investments held,
together with the value of the securities underlying the OTC FDIs. This exposure to market risk is
summarised in the table below:
Exposure to market risk on the portfolio as at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 was as
follows:

Ennismore European Smaller Companies Fund

Transferable securities - equities
Contracts for difference - long (notional amount)
Contracts for difference - short (notional amounts)
Net market exposure

31/12/2017
GBP

31/12/2016
GBP

304,454,936
564,102
(191,702,956)
113,316,082

283,540,737
665,213
(130,810,408)
153,395,542

31/12/2017
GBP

31/12/2016
GBP

145,998,478
1,888,869
(72,371,428)
75,515,919

108,499,180
1,995,991
(57,742,161)
52,753,010

Ennismore Global Equity Fund

Transferable securities - equities
Contracts for difference - long (notional amount)
Contracts for difference - short (notional amounts)
Net market exposure

The Funds’ portfolios are based on fundamental research, and the Funds do not attempt to track a
particular benchmark. Market risk is managed via adherence to the Funds’ investment and
borrowing restrictions, together with on-going monitoring of the individual investments held by the
Funds. As such, the market price risk sensitivity analysis provided below and on the following page
is for illustrative purposes only as part of the requirements of IFRS 7; neither the Investment
Manager nor the Board of Directors use this analysis to manage risk.
If the HSBC European Smaller Total Return Index had increased by 10% and the portfolio had
moved in line with that index, all other factors remaining equal, this would have increased the net
assets attributable to the holders of redeemable participating preference shares by approximately
GBP 15,080,970 (2016: GBP 16,463,947).
Conversely, a 10% decline would have decreased net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating preference shares by approximately GBP 15,080,970 (2016: GBP 16,463,947).
The Directors consider that each of these movements in the index is reasonably possible. However,
particularly given that the investment approach is not based upon benchmarking against any index,
the actual trading result in the event of such a movement in the index is likely to be different from
this and the difference may be material.
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(a)

Market risk (continued…)
(iii) Market price risk (continued…)
The sector exposure of the portfolio (calculated based on the fair value as a percentage of the NAV
at year end) as at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 is analysed in the table below:
Ennismore European Smaller Companies Fund
Exposure*

Sector
Consumer Discretionary
Consumer Staples
Energy
Financials
Health Care
Industrials
Information Technology
Materials
Real Estate
Telecommunication Services
Utilities

Gross
2017
%
37.10
10.00
0.60
7.70
5.70
19.10
30.50
4.09
7.84
3.06
-

Net
2017
%
14.80
(1.43)
(0.60)
2.10
3.80
5.30
(2.90)
3.09
3.14
1.37
-

Gross
2016
%
30.71
8.83
0.76
17.22
5.03
18.51
21.68
6.14
3.21
1.45

Net
2016
%
18.65
(1.50)
0.55
10.82
4.19
4.17
2.72
4.06
(0.25)
(1.45)

Gross
2016
%
25.42
9.29
2.62
5.88
1.61
16.39
28.54
9.89
7.37
1.79

Net
2016
%
16.38
(0.44)
1.89
1.07
0.14
11.33
1.83
2.26
1.43
(1.79)

Ennismore Global Equity Fund
Exposure*

Sector
Consumer Discretionary
Consumer Staples
Energy
Financials
Health Care
Industrials
Information Technology
Materials
Real Estate
Telecommunication Services
Utilities

Gross
2017
%
37.06
14.73
0.42
4.81
1.64
17.70
39.30
2.10
2.28
12.06
-

Net
2017
%
23.24
3.89
(0.42)
2.07
(0.04)
9.41
2.04
(2.10)
(2.28)
9.49
-

* the exposure calculations are carried out by dividing the market value of equities, Treasury Bills
(excluding those classified as cash equivalents) and bonds and the market value of the equity
positions underlying contracts for difference by the Net Asset Value of the Fund; the gross exposure
reflects the aggregate value of long and short exposure; the net exposure reflects the value of long
exposure less short exposure.
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(a)

Market risk (continued…)
(iii) Market price risk (continued…)
The Investment Manager reviews the credit concentration of debt and equity securities based on
industries and geographical location.
The gross market exposure of the Ennismore European Smaller Companies Fund portfolio, being
the value of the equities and bonds held together with the equity exposure underlying contracts for
difference, as at 31 December 2017 was 125.69% (2016: 113.54%). The gross market exposure of
the Ennismore Global Equity Fund portfolio, being the value of the equities held together with the
equity exposure underlying contracts for difference, as at 31 December 2017 was 132.10% (2016:
108.76%).
Please refer to the Portfolio of Investments (Audited) on pages 73 to 97 for the geographical
exposure of the portfolio as at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016.

(b)

Credit risk
This is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party
by failing to discharge an obligation. This includes counterparty risk and issuer risk. In relation to
the Fund, it can arise from receivables from another party, placing deposits with other entities and
entering into derivatives contracts.
With the exception of Treasury Bills with less than three months’ maturity the Funds have not
invested in debt instruments and cash deposits have not been placed with maturities in excess of one
month.
At 31 December the Company was invested in treasury bills with the following credit quality.
Ennismore European Smaller Companies Fund

31/12/2017
GBP
21,772,321
21,772,321

Rating
AA
Total

31/12/2016
GBP
14,916,990
14,916,990

As a consequence of its use of OTC FDIs, the Funds have an exposure to counterparty risk because
the counterparty may become insolvent or otherwise incapable of meeting its obligations under an
FDI contract. This includes the legal risk arising from a contract not being enforceable.
The Funds maintain the following Counterparty Exposure and Overall Issuer Exposure limits:
Counterparty Exposure limit is 5% of NAV (increased to 10% for credit institutions authorised in
an EEA member state or Switzerland); and Issuer Exposure limit is 20% of NAV.
The methods and calculation examples used by the Investment Manager to ensure compliance with
these limits are detailed in the Risk Management Process Statement that is reviewed by the Board
of Directors and is filed with the Central Bank at least annually.
Where OTC FDIs have the same counterparty, the Investment Manager looks to set up contractual
netting agreements with the counterparty. These enable the Fund to offset mark-to-market values of
one OTC FDI with others contracted with the same counterparty.
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Risk management policies and procedures (continued…)

(b)

Credit risk (continued…)
The table below sets out the Funds’ maximum credit exposure before taking into account the impact
of any netting agreements which enable the Funds to offset assets and liabilities due to/from the
same counterparty. The analysis is calculated on the basis of selected items on the Statement of
Financial Position.
Ennismore European Smaller Companies Fund
Deposits held with credit institutions
Cash held with counterparties
Cash equivalents
Derivatives
Other Debtors

Ennismore Global Equity Fund

31/12/2017
GBP
66,027,657
20,987,679
21,772,321
11,821,782
52,439
120,661,878

31/12/2016
GBP
69,894,428
20,408,239
14,916,990
4,302,556
389,666
109,911,879

31/12/2017

31/12/2016

GBP
18,420,379
11,458,213
1,285,501
6,785
31,170,878

Deposits held with credit institutions
Cash held with counterparties
Derivatives
Other Debtors

GBP
44,422,937
3,721,724
3,766,960
443,805
52,355,426

Northern Trust Fiduciary Services (Ireland) Limited (“NTFSIL”) is the appointed Depositary of the
Company, responsible for the safe-keeping of assets. NTFSIL has appointed The Northern Trust
Company (“TNTC”) as its global sub-custodian. Both NTFSIL and TNTC are wholly owned
subsidiaries of Northern Trust Corporation (“NTC”). As at 31 December 2017 NTC had a long term
credit rating from Standard & Poor’s of (A+).
TNTC (as global sub-custodian of NTFSIL) does not appoint external sub-custodians within the
U.S., the U.K., Ireland and Canada. However, in all other markets, TNTC appoints local external
sub-custodians.
NTFSIL, in the discharge of its depositary duties, verifies the Company’s ownership of Other
Assets, (as defined under Other Assets in Art 22(5) of UCITS V Directive 2014/91/EU,) by
assessing whether the Company holds the ownership based on information or documents provided
by the Company or where available, on external evidence.
TNTC, in the discharge of its delegated depositary duties, holds in custody (i) all financial
instruments that may be registered in a financial instruments account opened on the books of TNTC
and (ii) all financial instruments that can be physically delivered to TNTC. TNTC ensures all
financial instruments (held in a financial instruments account on the books of TNTC) are held in
segregated accounts in the name of the Company, clearly identifiable as belonging to the Company,
and distinct and separately from the proprietary assets of TNTC, NTFSIL and NTC.
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(b)

Credit risk (continued…)
In addition TNTC, as banker, holds cash of the Company on deposit. Such cash is held on the
Statement of Financial Position of TNTC. In the event of insolvency of TNTC, in accordance with
standard banking practice, the Company will rank as an unsecured creditor of TNTC in respect of
any cash deposits. Insolvency of NTFSIL and or one of its agents or affiliates may cause the
Company’s rights with respect to its assets to be delayed.
The Responsible Party manages risk by monitoring the credit quality and financial position of the
Depositary and such risk is further managed by the Depositary monitoring the credit quality and
financial positions of sub-custodian appointments.
Cash held with counterparties is collateral deposited against CFD positions held with those
counterparties. CFD counterparties as at 31 December 2017 were Goldman Sachs International and
SEB. The exposure to each of these counterparties at year end as a percentage of net asset value is
disclosed below:

Ennismore European Smaller Companies Fund
S&P Credit
Rating
CommerzBank AG
Goldman Sachs
SEB

31/12/2017 31/12/2016 31/12/2017 31/12/2016
GBP
GBP
1.41%
1.59%

AA+
A+

0.52%
0.49%
0.77%

5,590,788
6,278,054

1,884,337
1,806,799
2,832,221

Ennismore Global Equity Fund
S&P Credit
Rating
Goldman Sachs
SEB

31/12/2017 31/12/2016 31/12/2017 31/12/2016
GBP
GBP
0.09%
1.92%

A+
A+
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2.74%

142,754
3,197,355

4,243,877
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(b)

Credit risk (continued…)
Financial assets and liabilities enforceable to master netting or similar agreements
31 December 2017
Ennismore European Smaller Companies Fund

Gross
amounts of
recognised
assets
/(liabilities)
Derivatives assets
Counterparty
Goldman Sachs
SEB
Financial statement
offset

Gross
amounts Net amounts
offset in presented in
the
Statement
Statement
of
of
Financial
Financial
Financial
Position Instruments
Position

Cash
Collateral
deposited /
(received)

9,629,452
2,192,330

-

9,629,452
2,192,330

(9,629,452)
(2,192,330)

-

11,821,782

-

11,821,782

779,158
(11,042,624)

-

-

(17,738,566)
(3,202,054)

9,629,452
2,192,330

8,109,114
1,009,724

-

(20,940,620)

(779,158)
11,042,624

9,118,838

-

(9,118,838)

Derivatives liabilities
Counterparty
Goldman Sachs
(17,738,566)
SEB
(3,202,054)
Financial statement
offset
(20,940,620)

Derivatives net
assets / (liabilities)

Gross amounts not offset
in the Statement of
Financial Position

(9,118,838)
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-

9,118,838

Net
Amount

779,158
779,158

(779,158)
(779,158)

-
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(b)

Credit risk (continued…)

Financial assets and liabilities enforceable to master netting or similar agreements
31 December 2016
Ennismore European Smaller Companies Fund

Gross
amounts of
recognised
assets
/(liabilities)
Derivatives assets
Counterparty
Goldman Sachs
Commerzbank
SEB
Financial statement
offset

Gross amounts not offset
in the Statement of
Financial Position

Gross Net amounts
amounts presented in
offset in
the
Statement Statement of
of Financial
Financial
Financial
Position
Position Instruments

Cash
Collateral
deposited /
(received)

Net
Amount

3,726,086
81,422
558,816

-

3,726,086
81,422
558,816

(3,726,086)
(81,422)
(558,816)

-

-

4,366,324

(63,768)
(63,768)

(63,768)
4,302,556

(4,366,324)

-

-

Derivatives liabilities
Counterparty
Goldman Sachs
(11,787,928)
Commerzbank
(285,979)
SEB
(6,177,300)
Financial statement
offset
(18,251,207)

-

(11,787,928)
(285,979)
(6,177,300)

3,726,086
81,422
558,816

8,061,842
204,557
5,618,484

-

63,768
63,768

63,768
(18,187,439)

4,366,324

13,884,883

-

Derivatives net
assets / (liabilities) (13,884,883)

-

(13,884,883)

13,884,883

-

63

-

ENNISMORE SMALLER COMPANIES PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 December 2017 (continued…)
15.

Risk management policies and procedures (continued…)

(b)

Credit risk (continued…)
Financial assets and liabilities enforceable to master netting or similar agreements
31 December 2017
Gross amounts not offset
Ennismore Global Equity Fund
in the Statement of
Financial Position
Gross
amounts Net amounts
Gross
offset in presented in
amounts of Statement
the
Cash
recognised
of Statement of
Collateral
assets Financial
Financial
Financial deposited /
/(liabilities)
Position
Position Instruments (received)
Derivatives assets
Counterparty
Goldman Sachs
SEB
Financial statement
offset

618,407
667,094

-

618,407
667,094

(618,407)
(667,094)

-

1,285,501

-

1,285,501

187,612
(1,097,889)

-

-

(1,024,348)
(8,379,258)

618,407
667,094

405,941
7,712,164

-

(9,403,606)

(187,612)
1,097,889

8,118,105

-

(8,118,105)

Derivatives liabilities
Counterparty
Goldman Sachs
(1,024,348)
SEB
(8,379,258)
Financial statement
offset
(9,403,606)
Derivatives net
assets / (liabilities)

(8,118,105)
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8,118,105

Net
Amount

187,612
187,612

(187,612)
(187,612)

-
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(b)

Credit risk (continued…)
Financial assets and liabilities enforceable to master netting or similar agreements
31 December 2016
Gross amounts not offset
Ennismore Global Equity Fund
in the Statement of
Financial Position

Gross
amounts of
recognised
assets
/(liabilities)
Derivatives assets
Counterparty
SEB

(c)

3,766,960
3,766,960

Gross
Net amounts
amounts
presented in
offset in
the
Statement
Statement of
of Financial
Financial
Financial
Position
Position Instruments

Cash
Collateral
deposited /
(received)

-

3,766,960
3,766,960

(3,244,877)
(3,244,877)

-

Derivatives liabilities
Counterparty
SEB
(3,244,877)
(3,244,877)

-

(3,244,877)
(3,244,877)

3,244,877
3,244,877

-

Derivatives net
assets / (liabilities)

-

522,083

522,083

-

-

Net
Amount

522,083
522,083

-

522,083

Liquidity risk
This is the risk that the Funds will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with
financial liabilities. The Funds’ assets comprise mainly readily realisable securities. The main
financial liability of the Funds are the redemption of redeemable participating shares. The Funds are
exposed to daily cash redemptions of redeemable participating shares. As an open-ended investment
company with variable capital, the Funds are required to sell shares back to shareholders at a price
equivalent to the net asset value per share, less any applicable purchase or redemption charge.
To meet the redemption liability the Funds may be required to unwind positions in derivatives or
sell securities. The Funds invest in small capitalisation equity securities and in less liquid markets,
which may result in these positions being more difficult to unwind quickly. This could lead to
investments being liquidated at less than fair value.
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(c)

Liquidity risk
The Investment Manager reviews the liquidity of the portfolio on a daily basis. Also the Directors
are able, by the provisions in the Prospectus, to limit the number of redemptions on any given day
to 10% of the total number of redeemable participating shares then in issue in order to facilitate the
orderly disposition of securities in the interests of remaining shareholders.
The Funds invest in companies with smaller market capitalisations. The volumes trading for such
investees on a daily basis can be small relative to the volumes of shares held by the Funds. The
amount realisable should the Funds seek to dispose of its holdings on an individual day or short
period could differ from the daily exchange price and such differences could be significant.
As at 31 December 2017 one of the Level 3 instruments was Ennismore European Smaller
Companies Fund’s equity holding in Trader Media East. As observable prices were not available for
this security the Company used valuation techniques to derive fair value. The main inputs into the
valuation model for this investment included net asset value, earnings multiples, discounted cash
flows and the price of capital raising transactions. Given the level of uncertainty surrounding the
financial position of Trader Media East, the investment was written off by the Fund in January 2013
and no value is attributed to it at 31 December 2017. As the valuation is based on unobservable
inputs the actual amount that may be realised on this investment may differ significantly from the
reported valuation.
As at 31 December 2017 Ennismore European Smaller Companies Fund held shares in Outsourcery
PLC. That company went into administration in June 2016 with the immediate sale of its business
and assets. No value was expected to be returned to shareholders and the position was written down
to nil.
As at 31 December 2017 Ennismore European Smaller Companies Fund held shares in
Worldspreads Group. The shares were suspended and the Company placed into Administration in
March 2012. Given the uncertainty regarding the residual equity value (if any) at the time, the
shares were immediately valued at nil by the Fund. No value is expected to be recovered.
As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, financial liabilities including amounts payable on
redeemable participating shares are due within 1-3 months. The CFDs held as derivative financial
liabilities are due after one year. Please refer to the market risk note for the gross contractual
amounts.

(d)

Concentration Risk
The Investment Manager reviews the credit concentration of debt and equity instruments based on
the industries and geographical locations. Please refer to the Portfolio of Investments for
information on same.

(e)

Leverage Risk
The Funds may be leveraged through the use of financial derivative instruments which may give net
market exposure to equities of up to 120% of Net Asset Value for the Ennismore European Smaller
Companies Fund and up to 130% for the Ennismore Global Equity Fund. Gross equity exposure is
limited to 200% of NAV. Please refer to pages 23, 25 and 59 for the actual gross exposure for 2017.
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(f)

Legal, Tax and Regulatory Risk
Legal, tax and regulatory changes could occur during the duration of the company which may
adversely affect the company. Legal risk associated with the Financial Derivative Instruments that
the Funds intend to utilise is assessed as being low. CFDs will only be contracted with regulated
counterparties and a master agreement will be entered into with each counterparty prior to dealing
setting out the terms applying to each CFD.

16.

Fair Value Hierarchy
IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement requires the Company to classify fair value measurements using a
fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements.
The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:
• Level 1 – valued using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities.
• Level 2 – valued using inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability either directly or indirectly.
• Level 3 – valued using inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market
data (unobservable inputs).
The table below analyses within the fair value hierarchy the Company financial assets and liabilities
measured at fair value at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016.
Ennismore European Smaller Companies Fund
Level 1
31 December 2017
GBP'000
Financial Assets
Financial Assets at Fair Value
Through Profit or Loss:
Equities
304,455
304,455
Derivative Financial Instruments:
Contracts for Difference
304,455
Financial Liabilities
Financial Liabilities at Fair Value
Through Profit or Loss:
Derivative Financial Instruments:
Contracts for Difference
304,455
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Level 2
GBP'000

Level 3
GBP'000

Total Fair Value
GBP'000

-

-

304,455
304,455

11,822
11,822

-

11,822
316,277

(20,941)
(9,119)

-

(20,941)
295,336
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Ennismore European Smaller Companies Fund
Level 1
31 December 2016
GBP'000
Financial Assets
Financial Assets at Fair Value
Through Profit or Loss:
Equities
283,541
283,541
Derivative Financial Instruments:
Contracts for Difference
283,541
Financial Liabilities
Financial Liabilities at Fair Value
Through Profit or Loss:
Derivative Financial Instruments:
Contracts for Difference
283,541

Level 2
GBP'000

-

Level 3
GBP'000

Total Fair Value
GBP'000

-

283,541
283,541

4,302
4,302

-

4,302
287,843

(18,187)
(13,885)

-

(18,187)
269,656

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total Fair Value

GBP'000

GBP'000

GBP'000

GBP'000

Ennismore Global Equity Fund
31 December 2017
Financial Assets
Financial Assets at Fair Value
Through Profit or Loss:
Equities
Derivative Financial Instruments:
Contracts for Difference
Financial Liabilities
Financial Liabilities at Fair Value
Through Profit or Loss:
Derivative Financial Instruments:
Contracts for Difference

145,998
145,998

-

-

145,998
145,998

145,998

1,286
1,286

-

1,286
147,284

145,998

(9,404)
(8,118)

-

(9,404)
137,880
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Ennismore Global Equity Fund
31 December 2016
Financial Assets
Financial Assets at Fair Value
Through Profit or Loss:
Equities
Derivative Financial Instruments:
Contracts for Difference
Financial Liabilities
Financial Liabilities at Fair Value
Through Profit or Loss:
Derivative Financial Instruments:
Contracts for Difference

Level 1
GBP'000

108,499
108,499

Level 2
GBP'000

-

Level 3
GBP'000

Total Fair Value
GBP'000

-

108,499
108,499

108,499

3,767
3,767

-

3,767
112,266

108,499

(3,245)
522

-

(3,245)
109,021

Investments whose values are based on quoted market prices in active markets, and therefore
classified within Level 1, include active listed equities. The Company does not adjust the quoted
price for these instruments.
Financial instruments that trade in markets that are not considered to be active but are valued based
on quoted market prices, dealer quotations or alternative pricing sources supported by observable
inputs are classified within Level 2. As Level 2 investments include positions that are not traded in
active markets and/or are subject to transfer restrictions, valuations may be adjusted to reflect
illiquidity and/or non-transferability, which are generally based on available market information.
Level 2 investments also include CFDs which are valued based on the market price of the
underlying equity security.
During 2017 there were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 of the fair value hierarchy for
financial assets and financial liabilities (2016: Nil). Financial assets would be transferred from
Level 1 to Level 2 if they ceased to be traded during the year and fair values consequently obtained
using valuation techniques from observable market inputs.
Financial assets would be transferred from Level 2 to Level 1 if certain securities were listed on a
stock exchange during the year for the first time and were considered to be traded in an active
market. Fair values for these instruments at the reporting date would be based on quoted market
prices or binding dealer price quotations.
Neither of the above two scenarios applied to the Fund during 2017 or 2016. Transfers between
levels are deemed to occur at the beginning of the year.
For assets and liabilities carried at amortised cost, their carrying values are a reasonable
approximation of fair value. All assets and liabilities not held at fair value are classified as Level 2.
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Collateral positions
The following investments, held by the Depositary, in respect of the Ennismore European Smaller
Companies Fund are pledged in favour of Goldman Sachs International as collateral for Contracts
for Difference as at 31 December 2017:

Nominal
97,200
158,315
184,000
173,803
165,613
26,000
3,913,350
6,900,000
522,400
1,288,900
36,912
18,000
66,624
15,733
85,927

Ascential
Auto Trader
Costain
Domino's Pizza
Etsy
Inmarsat
JD Sports Fashion
Kongsberg Automotive
L'Occitane International
WM Morrison Supermarkets
MTU Aero Engines
Renk AG NPV
Tripadvisor
Tucows
Twitter
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Year ended
31/12/2017
Fair value
GBP
374,512
558,535
860,660
600,837
2,503,630
127,608
13,156,683
7,327,411
707,411
2,834,291
4,895,209
1,805,719
1,697,182
814,708
1,525,120
39,789,516
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The following investments, that were held by the Depositary, in respect of the Ennismore European
Smaller Companies Fund were pledged in favour of Goldman Sachs International as collateral for
Contracts for Difference as at 31 December 2016:

Nominal
18,000
4,000,000
3,343,350
8,617
350,000
345,613
150,000
800,000
1,396,900
250,000
64,000
25,530
200,000

Renk AG NPV
Kongsberg Automotive
JD Sports Fashion
Cimpress
Essentra
Etsy
IWG
L'Occitane International
WM Morrison Supermarkets
Potash Corp of Saskatchewan
Tripadvisor
Tucows
Twitter

Year ended
31/12/2016
Fair value
GBP
1,554,148
2,132,360
10,628,510
638,857
1,613,500
3,294,882
369,000
1,225,864
3,222,648
3,660,017
2,401,716
728,307
2,638,286
34,108,095

The following investments, held by the Depositary, in respect of the Ennismore Global Equity Fund
are pledged in favour of Goldman Sachs International as collateral for Contracts for Difference as at
31 December 2017:

Nominal
96,517
31,700
21,975
91,931

Etsy
Tripadvisor
Tucows
Twitter

Year ended
31/12/2017
Fair value
GBP
1,459,081
807,527
1,137,940
1,631,686
5,036,234

There were no investments pledged as collateral with Goldman Sachs International for Ennismore
Global Equity Fund in 2016.
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18.

Soft Commission arrangements
A Commission Sharing Agreement was used to pay for third party research in 2017. The total
amount of commission credits charged to the Funds was GBP 17,536 (2016: GBP 19,185). The
Agreement was terminated in 2017 and the account closed with a nil balance.

19.

Significant events during the year
The GBP A shares in Ennismore European Smaller Companies Fund were delisted from the Irish
Stock Exchange effective 26 June 2017.
There have been no other events during the year, which, in the opinion of the Directors, may have
had an impact on the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017.

20.

Post balance sheet events
There have been no events subsequent to the year end, which, in the opinion of the Directors, may
have had an impact on the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017.

21.

Contingent Liabilities and Commitments
There were no contingent liabilities or commitments as at 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil), other
than those disclosed in note 15.

22.

Approval of the financial statements
The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2018.
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HOLDINGS

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

FAIR VALUE
GBP

% OF NET
ASSETS

Equities: 77.01% (2016: 77.58%)
Australia: 1.12% (2016: 0.19%)
Information Technology: 0.20% (2016: 0.19% )
94,880

carsales.com

794,906

0.20

3,654,495

0.92

4,449,401

1.12

6,471,145

1.64

6,471,145

1.64

516,238

0.13

Telecommunication Services: 0.92% (2016: 0.00% )
962,032

TPG Telecom

Total Australia
Austria: 1.64% (2016: 2.16%)
Industrials: 1.64% (2016: 1.98% )
214,223

Strabag
Information Technology: 0.00% (2016: 0.18% )

Total Austria
Belgium: 0.44% (2016: 0.65%)
Consumer Discretionary: 0.13% (2016: 0.65% )
13,085

Van de Velde
Information Technology: 0.31% (2016: 0.00% )

15,280

Barco

Total Belgium

1,210,555

0.31

1,726,793

0.44

1,785,588

0.45

1,785,588

0.45

628,524

0.16

Bermuda: 0.45% (2016: 0.74%)
Telecommunication Services: 0.45% (2016: 0.74% )
2,666,996

Asia Satellite Telecommunications

Total Bermuda
Canada: 0.16% (2016: 1.33%)
Information Technology: 0.16% (2016: 0.17% )
1,398

Constellation Software Inc
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HOLDINGS

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

FAIR VALUE
GBP

% OF NET
ASSETS

Canada: 0.16% (2016: 1.33%) (continued)
Materials: 0.00% (2016: 1.16% )

Total Canada

628,524

0.16

1,929,922

0.49

Cayman Islands: 0.00% (2016: 0.15%)
France: 7.32% (2016: 7.36%)
Consumer Discretionary: 0.49% (2016: 1.37% )
57,593

Maisons du Monde
Health Care: 4.68% (2016: 4.11% )

424,280

Cegedim

12,496,317

3.16

85,384

Guerbet

6,010,392

1.52

8,487,310

2.15

28,923,941

7.32

Information Technology: 2.15% (2016: 1.54% )
72,248

IGE+XAO Group
Materials: 0.00% (2016: 0.34% )

Total France
Germany: 18.59% (2016: 16.25%)
Consumer Discretionary: 3.58% (2016: 3.89% )
23,251

Hornbach

1,527,720

0.39

77,115

Hornbach Baumarkt

2,117,591

0.54

10,463,640

2.65

10,999,702

2.78

315,247

0.08

2,814,064

0.71

104,305

Renk*
Consumer Staples: 2.78% (2016: 0.00% )

744,241

METRO
Financials: 0.00% (2016: 4.12% )
Health Care: 0.08% (2016: 0.18% )

197,409

AAP Implantate
Industrials: 4.03% (2016: 3.43% )

60,075

Brenntag
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HOLDINGS

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

FAIR VALUE
GBP

% OF NET
ASSETS

Germany: 18.59% (2016: 16.25%) (continued)
Industrials: 4.03% (2016: 3.43% ) (continued)
119,990

Gesco

3,266,720

0.83

11,007

KSB

4,963,474

1.25

36,912

MTU Aero Engines*

4,895,209

1.24

23,602

0.01

4,169,250

1.05

Information Technology: 1.55% (2016: 2.06% )
3,285

Euromicron

1,707,938

msg life

18,005

Scout24

61,047

USU Software

544,206

0.13

1,419,501

0.36

10,282,523

2.60

3,916,600

0.99

1,324,977

0.34

Materials: 3.59% (2016: 2.57% )
92,007

STO

68,930

Uzin Utz
Real Estate: 2.98% (2016: 0.00% )

142,021

Defama

555,008

VIB Vermoegen

Total Germany

10,444,513

2.64

73,488,539

18.59

1,177,935

0.30

Greece: 0.00% (2016: 0.05%)
Guernsey: 0.00% (2016: 1.92%)
Ireland: 0.30% (2016: 1.12%)
Financials: 0.30% (2016: 0.00% )
640,182
1,347,866

IFG
Worldspreads Group

-

-

Industrials: 0.00% (2016: 1.12% )

Total Ireland

1,177,935

0.30

Italy: 3.79% (2016: 1.67%)
Consumer Discretionary: 0.71% (2016: 0.65% )
916,102

Caltagirone Editore

1,041,708

0.26

360,791

OVS

1,779,069

0.45
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FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

FAIR VALUE
GBP

% OF NET
ASSETS

Italy: 3.79% (2016: 1.67%) (continued)
Financials: 0.87% (2016: 0.78% )
292,681

Gruppo MutuiOnline

3,445,015

0.87

3,156,795

0.80

841,904

0.21

4,720,457

1.20

14,984,948

3.79

Industrials: 0.80% (2016: 0.00% )
276,107

Openjobmetis Agenzia per il lavoro
Information Technology: 1.41% (2016: 0.08% )

954,644
1,032,580

BE
Piteco
Materials: 0.00% (2016: 0.16% )

Total Italy
Jersey: 0.00% (2016: 0.25%)
Consumer Discretionary: 0.00% (2016: 0.00% )
2,027,654

Trader Media East

-

-

Industrials: 0.00% (2016: 0.25% )

Total Jersey

-

-

Luxembourg: 0.23% (2016: 0.85%)
Consumer Discretionary: 0.23% (2016: 0.85% )
679,090

L'Occitane International*

Total Luxembourg

919,594

0.23

919,594

0.23

3,566,772

0.90

890,772

0.23

4,457,544

1.13

Netherlands: 1.13% (2016: 0.48%)
Industrials: 0.90% (2016: 0.00% )
257,077

Intertrust
Information Technology: 0.23% (2016: 0.48% )

25,730,523

Jubii Europe

Total Netherlands
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New Zealand: 0.01% (2016: 0.00%)
Information Technology: 0.01% (2016: 0.00% )
3,231

Xero

Total New Zealand

53,508

0.01

53,508

0.01

Norway: 7.69% (2016: 5.31%)
Consumer Discretionary: 4.71% (2016: 1.97% )
13,861,608

14,720,247

3.72

86,200

Kongsberg Automotive*
Schibsted Class A

1,827,675

0.46

106,614

Schibsted Class B

2,100,556

0.53

11,763,514

2.98

30,411,992

7.69

Energy: 0.00% (2016: 0.66% )
Financials: 2.98% (2016: 2.68% )
1,045,452

Oslo Bors Vps

Total Norway
Sweden: 1.25% (2016: 0.17%)
Consumer Discretionary: 0.45% (2016: 0.00% )
132,454

Nilorngruppen

923,836

0.23

80,767

Scandic Hotels

858,669

0.22

570,598

0.15

2,589,306

0.65

4,942,409

1.25

3,689,895

0.93

Ascential*

374,512

0.09

ASOS

338,637

0.09

Financials: 0.15% (2016: 0.17% )
18,366

Avanza Bank
Industrials: 0.65% (2016: 0.00% )

246,165

Momentum

Total Sweden
United Kingdom: 28.62% (2016: 33.18%)
Consumer Discretionary: 12.72% (2016: 13.32% )
194,205
97,200
5,043
795,159
8,095,460
630,604

4imprint Group

System1
Cello Group
DFS Furniture
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United Kingdom: 28.62% (2016: 33.18%) (continued)
Consumer Discretionary: 12.72% (2016: 13.32% ) (continued)
Domino's Pizza*

600,837

0.15

1,307,232

173,803

Game Account Network

419,948

0.11

29,200
1,690,487

Games Workshop
Henry Boot

768,836
5,392,654

0.19
1.36

6,213,461

JD Sports Fashion*

20,889,656

5.28

3,611,545

Up Global Sourcing

2,889,236

0.73

765,316

0.19

3,245,502

0.82

542,602

0.14

8,112,480

2.05

Alpha Financial Markets Consulting

1,217,650

0.31

7,104,628

Arena Events

4,369,346

1.11

2,914,382

Costain*

13,632,022

3.45

1,252,500

Filta

1,897,538

0.48

7,894,677

Norman Broadbent

907,888

0.23

558,535
-

0.14
-

223,450
1,475,899

Consumer Staples: 1.01% (2016: 3.67% )
Swallowfield
WM Morrison Supermarkets*
Financials: 0.14% (2016: 4.16% )

27,103

Admiral
Health Care: 2.05% (2016: 0.32% )

2,559,142

Servelec
Industrials: 5.58% (2016: 3.69% )

735,740

Information Technology: 3.76% (2016: 6.39% )
158,315
2,175,999

Auto Trader*
Outsourcery

2,539,450

RM

5,056,681

1.28

1,554,589

Tracsis

7,967,269

2.02

Universe

1,267,745

0.32

Mountview Estates

1,408,624

0.36

U & I Group

8,518,904

2.15

20,283,925

Materials: 0.00% (2016: 0.88% )
Real Estate: 2.51% (2016: 0.00% )
12,577
4,408,229
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United Kingdom: 28.62% (2016: 33.18%) (continued)
Telecommunication Services: 0.85% (2016: 0.75% )
676,827

Inmarsat*

3,321,867

0.85

113,160,289

28.62

587,869

0.14

Etsy*

4,805,187

1.22

88,445

TripAdvisor*

2,253,051

0.57

393,688

Under Armour

4,199,532

1.06

1,918,981

0.49

Total United Kingdom
United States: 4.27% (2016: 3.75%)
Consumer Discretionary: 2.99% (2016: 1.97% )
680
317,859

Amazon.com

Consumer Staples: 0.49% (2016: 0.00% )
13,584

Boston Beer Co
Industrials: 0.00% (2016: 0.69% )
Information Technology: 0.79% (2016: 1.09% )

15,733

Tucows*

129,216

Twitter*

Total United States
Total Equities

814,708

0.21

2,293,458

0.58

16,872,786

4.27

304,454,936

77.01

Financial Derivative Instruments: (2.30)% (2016: (3.81)%)
Contracts for Difference: (2.30)% (2016: (3.81)%)
Australia: (0.17)% (2016: (0.01)%)
Energy: 0.00% (2016: 0.00% )
(52,994)

AU004

105

-

Materials: (0.12)% (2016: (0.01)% )
(576,677)

AU002

(464,420)
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Australia: (0.17)% (2016: (0.01)%) (continued)
Telecommunication Services: (0.05)% (2016: 0.00% )
(204,454)

AU003

Total Australia

(210,421)

(0.05)

(674,736)

(0.17)

Austria: 0.21% (2016: 0.01%)
Consumer Discretionary: 0.15% (2016: 0.01% )
(110,825)

AT006

645,211

0.16

(16,294)

AT006

(44,404)

(0.01)

Industrials: 0.06% (2016: 0.00% )
(98,307)

AT007

(42,931)

(0.01)

(67,688)

AT008

276,104

0.07

833,980

0.21

Total Austria
Belgium: (0.01)% (2016: 0.00%)
Consumer Staples: (0.01)% (2016: 0.01% )
(14,949)

BE005

(57,588)

(110,898)

BE006

132

(0.01)
-

Health Care: 0.00% (2016: (0.01)% )

Total Belgium

(57,456)

(0.01)

(114,119)

(0.03)

(15,497)

-

(70,955)

(0.02)

(10,103)

-

Canada: (0.05)% (2016: 0.08%)
Consumer Staples: (0.03)% (2016: 0.09% )
(93,251)

CA006 - New York

(10,987)

CA006 - Toronto
Financials: (0.02)% (2016: (0.01)% )

(8,327)

CA007
Industrials: 0.00% (0.00% )

(46,278)

CA008

Total Canada

(210,674)
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Cayman Islands: (0.29)% (2016: 0.08%)
Information Technology: (0.09)% (2016: (0.01)% )
(5,010)

CI002

(348,584)

(0.09)

(790,676)

(0.20)

(1,139,260)

(0.29)

(41,075)

(0.01)

(41,075)

(0.01)

(20,018)

(0.01)

(44,527)

(0.01)

(64,545)

(0.02)

Real Estate: (0.20)% (2016: 0.00% )
(2,705,270)

CI004
Utilities: 0.00% (2016: 0.09% )

Total Cayman Islands
Denmark: (0.01)% (2016: 0.00%)
Consumer Staples: (0.01)% (2016: 0.00% )
(24,796)

DK010

Total Denmark
Finland: 0.00% (2016: (0.42)%)
France: (0.02)% (2016: 0.00%)
Consumer Staples: (0.01)% (2016: 0.00% )
(4,657)

FR014
Industrials: (0.01)% (2016: 0.00% )

(162,334)

FR015

Total France
Germany: 0.24% (2016: (1.11)%)
Consumer Discretionary: 0.06% (2016: (0.05)% )
(138,687)

DE043

135,251

0.03

(64,562)

DE051

133,921

0.03

(34,505)

-

Financials: 0.00% (2016: (0.07)% )
Health Care: 0.00% (2016: (0.01)% )
(6,175)

DE053
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Germany: 0.24% (2016: (1.11)%) (continued)
Industrials: 0.29% (2016: 0.00% )
(56,151)

DE061

414,043

0.10

(29,319)

DE062

248,545

0.07

(155,900)

DE063

470,517

0.12

Information Technology: (0.14)% (2016: (0.76)% )
(165,476)

DE019

(299,781)

(0.08)

(645,128)

DE047

234,791

0.06

(48,703)
(17,981)

DE047
DE057

(91,002)
(377,313)

(0.02)
(0.10)

115,527

0.03

949,994

0.24

22,549

0.01

22,549

0.01

Telecommunication Services: 0.03% (2016: (0.22)% )
(1,444,173)

DE056

Total Germany
Greece: 0.01% (2016: 0.00%)
Consumer Discretionary: 0.01% (2016: 0.00% )
(16,355)

GR001

Total Greece
Guernsey: 0.00% (2016: (0.01)%)
Isle of Man: 0.05% (2016: 0.00%)
Consumer Discretionary: 0.05% (2016: 0.00% )
(139,101)

US036

231,738

0.06

(166,126)

US036

(30,701)

(0.01)

Total Isle of Man

201,037

0.05

817,277

0.21

817,277

0.21

Italy: 0.21% (2016: 0.11%)
Consumer Discretionary: 0.00% (2016: 0.13% )
Financials: 0.00% (2016: (0.02)% )
Industrials: 0.21% (2016: 0.00% )
(1,998,970)

IT013

Total Italy
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Japan: 0.00% (2016: 0.00%)
Industrials: 0.00% (2016: 0.00% )
(2,695)

JP002

(11,245)

Total Japan

(11,245)

-

-

Jersey: 0.02% (2016: (0.01)%)
Consumer Discretionary: 0.00% (2016: (0.01)% )
Industrials: 0.02% (2016: 0.00% )
(204,439)

JE001

Total Jersey

62,396

0.02

62,396

0.02

Luxembourg: 0.00% (2016: 0.01%)
Netherlands: (0.07)% (2016: (0.41)%)
Consumer Discretionary: 0.07% (2016: (0.01)% )
(49,885)

NL011

250,190

0.06

(2,044,793)

NL013

44,882

0.01

(423,857)

(0.11)

(128,656)

(0.03)

(257,441)

(0.07)

394,898

0.10

151,755

0.04

546,653

0.14

Consumer Staples: (0.11)% (2016: 0.01% )
(104,250)

NL003
Industrials: (0.03)% (2016: (0.41)% )

(322,080)

NL008

Total Netherlands
Spain: 0.14% (2016: 0.01%)
Consumer Staples: 0.10% (2016: 0.01% )
(558,179)

ES011
Energy: 0.04% (2016: 0.00% )

(107,480)

ES012

Total Spain
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Sweden: 0.17% (2016: (0.02)%)
Consumer Discretionary: 0.19% (2016: (0.01)% )
(194,871)

SE029

21,993

0.01

(100,246)

SE031

716,504

0.18

(54,031)

(0.02)

17,871

-

Health Care: (0.02)% (2016: 0.00% )
(20,815)

SE032
Information Technology: 0.00% (2016: (0.01)% )

(15,263)

SE033

Total Sweden

702,337

0.17

Switzerland: (1.01)% (2016: (0.73)%)
Consumer Staples: (0.57)% (2016: (0.65)% )
(233,533)

CH015

(2,225,658)

(0.56)

(25,238)

CH020

(55,550)

(0.01)

(221,991)

(0.06)

(291,927)

(0.07)

Health Care: (0.06)% (2016: 0.00% )
(20,799)

CH019
Industrials: (0.07)% (2016: 0.07% )

(11,863)

CH013
Information Technology: (0.31)% (2016: (0.15)% )

(94,913)

CH012

(543,592)

(0.14)

(115,985)

CH021

(690,672)

(0.17)

(4,029,390)

(1.01)

Total Switzerland
United Kingdom: (0.91)% (2016: (1.45)%)
Consumer Discretionary: 0.17% (2016: (0.02)% )
(44,554)

GB082

350,987

0.09

(12,914,420)

GB098

318,453

0.08

(1,314,932)

GB099

325,528

0.08

(2,430,551)

GB105

161,524

0.04

(968,522)

GB051

(457,915)

(0.12)

(996,317)

(0.25)

Consumer Staples: (0.25)% (2016: 0.00% )
(250,206)

GB100
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United Kingdom: (0.91)% (2016: (1.45)%) (continued)
Financials: (0.41)% (2016: 0.02% )
(2,930,442)

GB073

351,654

0.09

(184,597)

GB094

(1,360,408)

(0.35)

(2,870,066)

GB101

(613,510)

(0.16)

Industrials: 0.82% (2016: (0.46)% )
(692,728)

GB065

2,979,828

0.76

(1,425,829)

GB072

282,761

0.07

Information Technology: (1.26)% (2016: (0.78)% )
(2,451,707)

GB069

612,927

0.16

(6,080,625)

GB069

(6,203,549)

(1.57)

(3,392,878)

GB091

631,506

0.16

(34,104)

GB102

(20,750)

(0.01)

66,166

0.02

(3,571,115)

(0.91)

Materials: 0.02% (2016: 0.01% )
(2,005,012)

GB096
Utilities: 0.00% (2016: (0.22)% )

Total United Kingdom
United States: (0.81)% (2016: 0.06%)
Consumer Discretionary: (0.58)% (2016: (0.01)% )
(37,415)

US037

(2,249,947)

(0.57)

(2,665)

US061

(34,045)

(0.01)

(22,915)

(0.01)

255,393

0.06

-

Consumer Staples: (0.01)% (2016: 0.02% )
(6,949)

US033
Financials: 0.06% (2016: 0.03% )

2,359

Credit Acceptance Corporation
Health Care: 0.02% (2016: 0.01% )

(73,850)

US031

13,773

(18,635)

US055

(18,233)

-

(80,982)

US062

65,082

0.02
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United States: (0.81)% (2016: 0.06%) (continued)
Industrials: (0.02)% (2016: 0.01% )
(7,094)

US053

(95,996)

(0.02)

(6,900)

US057

(6,978)

-

Information Technology: (0.26)% (2016: (0.07)% )
(25,330)

US024

(35,202)

(0.01)

(39,503)

US046

(166,549)

(0.04)

(244,753)

US058

(439,659)

(0.11)

(4,805)

US059

(127,015)

(0.03)

(7,021)

US060

(287,280)

(0.07)

(48,553)

(0.02)

(3,198,124)

(0.81)

Unrealised Gain on Contracts for Difference

11,821,782

3.00

Unrealised Loss on Contracts for Difference

(20,940,620)

(5.30)

Net Unrealised Loss on Contracts for Difference

(9,118,838)

(2.30)

Total Financial Derivative Instruments

(9,118,838)

(2.30)

Materials: 0.00% (2016: 0.13% )
Telecommunication Services: (0.02)% (2016: (0.06)% )
(102,138)

US051

Total United States

Total Value of Investments
Cash

(2016: 28.79% )

Other Net Liabilities

(2016: (2.56)% )

295,336,098

74.71

108,787,657

27.52

(8,803,037)

(2.23)

Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares at dealing prices
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Analysis of Total Assets

31/12/2017

31/12/2016

% OF TOTAL

% OF TOTAL

ASSETS

ASSETS

71.75

75.85

2.60

1.09

25.64

22.96

Transferable securities admitted to official stock
exchange listing or traded on a regulated market
OTC Financial derivative instruments (Unrealised gains)
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Other curent assets

0.01

0.10

100.00

100.00

The cash held with counterparties disclosed on the Statement of Financial Position is held with Goldman Sachs International and SEB.
The names of the equity securities underlying the contracts for difference are not disclosed due to the commercial sensitivity of short positions. Details of the
underlying securities will be provided to shareholders on request.
*Please refer to Note 17 for details of securities pledged as collateral.
The counterparties for the contracts for differences are Goldman Sachs International and SEB. Please refer to the Credit Risk analysis in Note 15 for more
details.
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Equities: 87.57% (2016: 70.17%)
Australia: 7.80% (2016: 1.39%)
Information Technology: 1.59% (2016: 1.39% )
316,324

carsales.com

2,650,165

1.59

10,354,135

6.21

13,004,300

7.80

784,217

0.47

784,217

0.47

1,252,424

0.75

1,252,424

0.75

1,880,628

1.13

1,880,628

1.13

1,328,165

0.80

1,328,165

0.80

Telecommunication Services: 6.21% (2016: 0.00% )
2,725,687

TPG Telecom

Total Australia
Austria: 0.47% (2016: 0.45%)
Industrials: 0.47% (2016: 0.45% )
25,961

Strabag

Total Austria
Belgium: 0.75% (2016: 2.00%)
Consumer Discretionary: 0.75% (2016: 2.00% )
31,745

Van de Velde

Total Belgium
Canada: 1.13% (2016: 5.76%)
Information Technology: 1.13% (2016: 1.00% )
4,183

Constellation Software Inc
Materials: 0.00% (2016: 4.76% )

Total Canada
France: 0.80% (2016: 0.78%)
Health Care: 0.80% (2016: 0.78% )
18,868

Guerbet

Total France

88

ENNISMORE SMALLER COMPANIES PLC
PORTFOLIO OF INVESTMENTS (Audited)
ENNISMORE GLOBAL EQUITY FUND
as at 31 December 2017 (continued…)

HOLDINGS

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

FAIR VALUE
GBP

% OF NET
ASSETS

Germany: 13.19% (2016: 12.69%)
Consumer Discretionary: 0.24% (2016: 0.64% )
6,199

Hornbach

407,309

0.24

2,094,351

1.26

6,342,430

3.80

11,443,905

6.86

1,715,345

1.03

22,003,340

13.19

2,174,187

1.30

2,174,187

1.30

2,086,754

1.25

2,086,754

1.25

3,974,511

2.38

3,974,511

2.38

Consumer Staples: 1.26% (2016: 0.00% )
141,704

METRO
Industrials: 10.66% (2016: 10.15% )

135,399
86,292

Brenntag
MTU Aero Engines
Information Technology: 1.03% (2016: 1.90% )

56,752

Scout24

Total Germany
Italy: 1.30% (2016: 0.00%)
Consumer Discretionary: 1.30% (2016: 0.00% )
440,920

OVS

Total Italy
Jersey: 0.00% (2016: 1.56%)
Luxembourg: 1.25% (2016: 2.29%)
Consumer Discretionary: 1.25% (2016: 2.29% )
1,541,000

L'Occitane International

Total Luxembourg
Netherlands: 2.38% (2016: 1.06%)
Industrials: 2.38% (2016: 0.00% )
286,465

Intertrust
Information Technology: 0.00% (2016: 1.06% )

Total Netherlands
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New Zealand: 0.11% (2016: 0.00%)
Information Technology: 0.11% (2016: 0.00% )
11,390

Xero

Total New Zealand

188,629

0.11

188,629

0.11

Norway: 5.95% (2016: 3.70%)
Consumer Discretionary: 5.95% (2016: 1.44% )
239,641

Schibsted Class A

5,081,042

3.05

245,017

Schibsted Class B

4,827,434

2.90

9,908,476

5.95

2,044,783

1.23

2,044,783

1.23

Ascential

1,387,122

0.83

ASOS

1,091,859

0.65

DFS Furniture

3,322,467

1.99

Domino's Pizza

2,040,214

1.22

JD Sports Fashion

6,329,382

3.80

7,372,625

4.42

1,794,112

1.08

Energy: 0.00% (2016: 2.26% )

Total Norway
Sweden: 1.23% (2016: 1.40%)
Financials: 1.23% (2016: 1.40% )
65,816

Avanza Bank

Total Sweden
United Kingdom: 19.61% (2016: 23.14%)
Consumer Discretionary: 8.49% (2016: 5.80% )
360,011
16,260
1,695,136
590,169
1,882,624

Consumer Staples: 4.42% (2016: 4.43% )
3,352,717

Wm Morrison Supermarkets
Financials: 1.08% (2016: 0.79% )

89,616

Admiral
Health Care: 0.00% (2016: 0.09% )
Industrial: 0.00% (2016: 1.70% )
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United Kingdom: 19.61% (2016: 23.14%) (continued)
Information Technology: 1.05% (2016: 4.62% )
497,465

Auto Trader Group

1,755,057

1.05

Materials: 0.00% (2016: 1.32% )
Telecommunication Services: 4.57% (2016: 4.39% )
1,550,804

Inmarsat

7,611,346

4.57

32,704,184

19.61

Consumer Discretionary: 21.52% (2016: 8.73% )
Amazon.com

2,018,638

1.21

TripAdvisor*
Under Armour

8,321,041
9,917,790

4.99
5.95

15,622,362

9.37

6,050,922

3.63

Total United Kingdom
United States: 31.60% (2016: 13.95%)

2,335
326,648
929,750
1,033,406

Etsy*
Consumer Staples: 3.63% (2016: 0.00% )

42,833

Boston Beer Co
Information Technology: 6.45% (2016: 5.22% )

49,289

Tucows*

2,552,352

1.54

460,914

Twitter*

8,180,775

4.91

52,663,880

31.60

145,998,478

87.57

Total United States
Total Equities

Financial Derivative Instruments: (4.87)% (2016: 0.33%)
Contracts for Difference: (4.87)% (2016: 0.33%)
Australia: (0.69)% (2016: (0.04)%)
Energy: 0.00% (2016: 0.00% )
(123,952)

AU004

246

-

Materials: (0.49)% (2016: (0.04)% )
(1,059,076)

AU002

(815,020)
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Australia: (0.69)% (2016: (0.04)%) (continued)
Telecommunication Services: (0.20)% (2016: 0.00% )
(325,128)

AU003

Total Australia

(334,615)

(0.20)

(1,149,389)

(0.69)

23,394

0.01

23,394

0.01

48,637

0.03

48,637

0.03

Austria: 0.01% (2016: 0.00%)
Industrials: 0.01% (2016: 0.00% )
(5,732)

AT008

Total Austria
Belgium: 0.03% (2016: (0.04)%)
Consumer Staples: 0.03% (2016: (0.01)% )
(37,835)

BE005
Health Care: 0.00% (2016: (0.03)% )

Total Belgium
Canada: (0.19)% (2016: 0.13%)
Consumer Staples: (0.09)% (2016: 0.13% )
(174,546)

CA006

(153,545)

(0.09)

(140,851)

(0.08)

(24,289)

(0.02)

(318,685)

(0.19)

(215,825)

(0.13)

Financials: (0.08)% (2016: 0.00% )
(23,282)

CA007
Industrials: (0.02)% (2016: 0.00% )

(108,360)

CA008

Total Canada
Cayman Islands: (0.44)% (2016: 0.40%)
Information Technology: (0.13)% (2016: 0.04% )
(4,196)

CI002
Real Estate: (0.31)% (2016: 0.00% )

(188,000)

CI004

69,438

0.04

(1,304,000)

CI004

(586,729)

(0.35)

92

ENNISMORE SMALLER COMPANIES PLC
PORTFOLIO OF INVESTMENTS (Audited)
ENNISMORE GLOBAL EQUITY FUND
as at 31 December 2017 (continued…)

HOLDINGS

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

FAIR VALUE
GBP

% OF NET
ASSETS

(733,116)

(0.44)

Cayman Islands: (0.44)% (2016: 0.40%) (continued)
Utilities: 0.00% (2016: 0.36% )

Total Cayman Islands
France: 0.00% (2016: 0.00%)
Consumer Staples: 0.00% (2016: 0.00% )
(9,346)

FR014

(4,729)

-

(3,851)

-

Industrials: 0.00% (2016: 0.00% )
(14,038)

FR015

Total France

(8,580)

-

(599,856)

(0.36)

Germany: (1.67)% (2016: 0.06%)
Consumer Discretionary: (0.36)% (2016: (0.08)% )
(56,636)

DE051
Industrials: 0.06% (2016: 0.00% )

(13,715)

DE061

137,341

0.08

(3,600)

DE062

(31,666)

(0.02)

Information Technology: (1.37)% (2016: 0.15% )
(15,368)

DE057

(159,606)

(0.10)

(98,174)

DE019

(2,122,885)

(1.27)

(2,776,672)

(1.67)

Telecommunication Services: 0.00% (2016: (0.01)% )

Total Germany
Guernsey: 0.00% (2016: (0.11)%)
Isle of Man: 0.11% (2016: 0.01%)
Consumer Discretionary: 0.11% (2016: 0.01% )
(120,380)

US036

267,332

0.16

(449,309)

US036

(83,032)

(0.05)

Total Isle of Man

184,300
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(27,560)

(0.02)

(27,560)

(0.02)

Japan: (0.02)% (2016: 0.00%)
Industrials: (0.02)% (2016: 0.00% )
(6,606)

JP002

Total Japan
Jersey: 0.00% (2016: (0.06)%)
Luxembourg: 0.00% (2016: 0.03%)
Netherlands: (0.13)% (2016: (0.43)%)
Consumer Discretionary: 0.00% (2016: (0.08)% )
(346,694)

NL013

7,632

-

(19,023)

(0.01)

(200,737)

(0.12)

(212,128)

(0.13)

(17,998)

(0.01)

Consumer Staples: (0.01)% (2016: 0.00% )
(5,029)

NL003
Industrials: (0.12)% (2016: (0.35)% )

(96,230)

NL008

Total Netherlands
Spain: 0.01% (2016: 0.18%)
Consumer Staples: (0.01)% (2016: 0.18% )
(117,199)

ES011
Energy: 0.02% (2016: 0.00% )

(26,710)

ES012

Total Spain

37,713

0.02

19,715

0.01

42,281

0.03

42,281

0.03

Sweden: 0.03% (2016: 0.06%)
Information Technology: 0.03% (2016: 0.06% )
(36,110)

SE033

Total Sweden
Switzerland: (0.25)% (2016: 0.09%)
Consumer Staples: (0.13)% (2016: 0.22% )
(3,083)

CH020

(6,786)
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(215,342)

(0.13)

Switzerland: (0.25)% (2016: 0.09%) (continued)
Consumer Staples: (0.13)% (2016: 0.22% ) (continued)
(47,417)

CH015

(2,191)

Health Care: (0.01)% (2016: 0.00% )
CH019

(20,941)

(0.01)

(1,674)

Industrials: (0.02)% (2016: 0.01% )
CH013

(40,612)

(0.02)

(57,786)

(0.04)

Information Technology: (0.09)% (2016: (0.14)% )
(14,239)

CH021

(28,279)

CH012

Total Switzerland

(80,444)

(0.05)

(421,911)

(0.25)

(71,129)

(0.04)

United Kingdom: (0.01)% (2016: (0.14)%)
Consumer Discretionary: (0.04)% (2016: 0.00% )
(159,100)

GB051
Consumer Staples: (0.07)% (2016: 0.00% )

(68,910)

GB100

35,142

0.02

(65,180)

GB100

(147,955)

(0.09)

(56,961)

(0.03)

90,158

0.05

Financials: (0.03)% (2016: (0.08)% )
(48,685)

GB094
Industrials: 0.05% (2016: 0.00% )

(100,518)

GB072
Information Technology: 0.02% (2016: (0.09)% )

(4,004,160)

GB091

158,963

0.10

(58,310)

GB102

(35,453)

(0.02)

(1,000,000)

GB106

(97,989)

(0.06)

103,759

0.06

(21,465)

(0.01)

Materials: 0.06% (2016: 0.03% )
(3,144,226)

GB096

Total United Kingdom
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United States: (1.66)% (2016: 0.19%)
Consumer Discretionary: (0.09)% (2016: 0.00% )
(4,920)

US061

(62,853)

(0.04)

(12,751)

US037

(80,780)

(0.05)

(113,185)

(0.07)

168,870

0.11

Consumer Staples: (0.07)% (2016: 0.08% )
(8,450)

US033
Financials: 0.10% (2016: 0.20% )

7,899

Credit Acceptance Corporation
Health Care: 0.02% (2016: 0.03% )

(150,543)

US062

94,595

0.06

(43,183)

US055

(42,245)

(0.03)

(110,007)

US031

(82,133)

(0.05)

Industrials: (0.11)% (2016: 0.03% )
(17,029)

US057

(17,223)

(0.01)

(12,026)

US053

(160,898)

(0.10)

Information Technology: (1.38)% (2016: (0.44)% )
(646,484)

US058

(1,161,303)

(0.70)

(46,857)

US024

(31,174)

(0.01)

(223,483)

US046

(838,901)

(0.50)

(8,100)

US059

(214,114)

(0.13)

(12,272)

US060

(75,748)

(0.05)

(149,834)

(0.09)

(2,766,926)

(1.66)

Materials: 0.00% (2016: 0.67% )
Telecommunication Services: (0.09)% (2016: (0.38)% )
(151,262)

US051

Total United States
Unrealised Gain on Contracts for Difference

1,285,501

0.77

Unrealised Loss on Contracts for Difference

(9,403,606)

(5.64)

Net Unrealised Loss on Contracts for Difference

(8,118,105)

(4.87)

Total Financial Derivative Instruments

(8,118,105)

(4.87)
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137,880,373

82.70

Cash

(2016: 31.13% )

29,878,592

17.93

Other Net Liabilities

(2016: (1.63)% )

(1,051,796)

(0.63)

Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable
Participating Shares at dealing prices
Analysis of Total Assets

166,707,169

100.00

31/12/2017

31/12/2016

% OF TOTAL

% OF TOTAL

ASSETS

ASSETS

82.49

67.45

0.62

2.34

16.88

29.93

Transferable securities admitted to official stock
exchange listing or traded on a regulated market
OTC Financial derivative instruments (Unrealised gains)
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Other current assets

0.01

0.28

100.00

100.00

The cash held with counterparties disclosed on the Statement of Financial Position is held with Goldman Sachs International and SEB.
The names of the equity securities underlying the contracts for difference are not disclosed due to the commercial sensitivity of short positions. Details of the
underlying securities will be provided to shareholders on request.
*Please refer to Note 17 for details of securities pledged as collateral.
The counterparties for the contracts for differences are Goldman Sachs International and SEB. Please refer to the Credit Risk analysis in Note 15 for more
details.
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TOP PURCHASES

VALUE GBP

METRO
Costain
KSB
JD Sports Fashion
Up Global Sourcing
Piteco
TPG Telecom
Arena Events
Intertrust
Under Armour
Openjobmetis Agenzia per il lavoro
Henry Boot
Strix Group
Gesco
Boston Beer Co
Inmarsat
Momentum
Servelec
OVS
4imprint Group
Guerbet
Schibsted Class A
Maisons du Monde
Hornbach
STO
Defama
Schibsted Class B
TripAdvisor
Domino's Pizza
Nilorngruppen
Hibernia Reits
Cello Group
Alpha Financial Markets Consulting

11,318,676
7,640,283
5,433,130
4,729,117
4,673,706
4,278,218
3,913,124
3,907,545
3,892,604
3,600,299
3,550,393
2,920,114
2,853,910
2,542,260
2,382,897
2,130,420
2,116,662
1,966,860
1,898,123
1,892,630
1,786,063
1,662,764
1,590,958
1,462,667
1,404,942
1,364,940
1,331,253
1,300,887
1,273,766
1,255,790
1,252,998
1,205,906
1,177,184

A Statement of Changes in the composition of the Portfolio of Investments during the reporting period is provided to ensure
that Shareholders can identify changes in the investments held by the Company. This statement presents the aggregate
purchases of transferable securities (excluding treasury bills) exceeding 1.00% of the total value of purchases for the period. At
a minimum the largest 20 purchases are listed above. If the Company entered into less than twenty purchases during the
reporting period, then all transactions are presented.
This statement of Portfolio Changes does not include transactions in contracts for difference and does not, therefore, reflect
any changes in the Company’s short equity exposure.
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VALUE GBP

Conviviality
JD Sports Fashion
Market Tech Holdings
Pfeiffer Vacuum Technology
VIB Vermoegen
Paragon Group of Companies
Chargeurs
Bodycote
Midwich Group
Cpl Resources
Potash Corp of Saskatchewan
Strix Group
Spectris
4imprint Group
Essentra
Telenet
Openjobmetis Agenzia per il lavoro
KSB
Somero Enterprises
B&C Speakers
Henry Boot
GFK
TGS Nopec Geophysical Company
DFS Furniture
Hornbach
Flowtech Fluidpower
Guerbet
HolidayCheck
Twitter
L'Occitane International
TripAdvisor
Hotel Chocolat Group

13,580,644
13,146,565
10,255,712
8,233,017
6,481,990
5,714,285
5,166,683
4,920,268
4,898,193
4,562,091
4,423,572
4,003,333
3,896,883
3,764,932
3,624,703
3,184,559
3,099,665
3,016,335
2,877,125
2,808,628
2,647,296
2,549,780
2,477,078
2,430,166
2,424,518
2,307,755
2,292,841
2,225,044
2,147,923
2,057,089
1,940,745
1,836,959

A Statement of Changes in the composition of the Portfolio of Investments during the reporting period is provided to ensure
that Shareholders can identify changes in the investments held by the Company. This statement presents the aggregate sales of
transferable securities (excluding treasury bills) exceeding 1.00% of the total value of sales for the period. At a minimum the
largest 20 sales are listed above. If the Company entered into less than twenty sales during the reporting period, then all
transactions are presented.
This statement of Portfolio Changes does not include transactions in contracts for difference and does not, therefore, reflect
any changes in the Company’s short equity exposure.
Copies of all portfolio changes are available, free of charge, from the registered office of the Company.
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TPG Telecom
Under Armour Class A
Boston Beer Co Class A
Schibsted Class A
TripAdvisor
Domino's Pizza
Inmarsat
Intertrust
SMA Solar Technology
MTU Aero Engines
Etsy
JD Sports Fashion
OVS
DFS Furniture
Schibsted Class B
METRO
Twitter
Cobham
Brenntag
Auto Trader Group
Amazon.com
Van de Velde
Potash Corp of Saskatchewan
WM Morrison Supermarkets

8,960,541
8,503,084
7,355,978
4,559,405
4,417,854
4,239,821
4,205,796
4,041,962
2,884,481
2,734,418
2,626,079
2,408,868
2,355,040
2,258,775
2,146,349
2,135,392
1,897,348
1,861,494
1,754,482
1,693,331
1,652,184
1,253,548
1,101,627
1,066,489

A Statement of Changes in the composition of the Portfolio of Investments during the reporting period is provided to ensure
that Shareholders can identify changes in the investments held by the Company. This statement presents the aggregate
purchases of transferable securities (excluding treasury bills) exceeding 1.00% of the total value of purchases for the period. At
a minimum the largest 20 purchases are listed above. If the Company entered into less than twenty purchases during the
reporting period, then all transactions are presented.
This statement of Portfolio Changes does not include transactions in contracts for difference and does not, therefore, reflect
any changes in the Company’s short equity exposure.

100

ENNISMORE SMALLER COMPANIES PLC
PORTFOLIO CHANGES (Unaudited)
ENNISMORE GLOBAL EQUITY FUND
as at 31 December 2017 (continued…)
TOP SALES
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Potash Corp of Saskatchewan
Spectris
Telenet
Boston Beer Co Class A
TGS Nopec Geophysical Company
SMA Solar Technology
Bodycote
IWG
Pfeiffer Vacuum Technology
Brenntag
Domino's Pizza
MTU Aero Engines
Twitter
Essentra
Cobham
JD Sports Fashion
Cimpress
L'Occitane International
GFK
Scout24
carsales.com
ASOS
Hibernia Reits

8,387,530
7,823,411
4,409,173
3,759,890
3,601,036
3,261,714
3,232,839
3,103,976
2,797,850
2,563,804
2,549,537
2,494,476
2,389,514
2,300,200
1,823,849
1,725,781
1,560,277
1,169,822
990,245
827,230
788,273
675,474
665,176

A Statement of Changes in the composition of the Portfolio of Investments during the reporting period is provided to ensure
that Shareholders can identify changes in the investments held by the Company. This statement presents the aggregate sales of
transferable securities (excluding treasury bills) exceeding 1.00% of the total value of sales for the period. At a minimum the
largest 20 sales are listed above. If the Company entered into less than twenty sales during the reporting period, then all
transactions are presented.
This statement of Portfolio Changes does not include transactions in contracts for difference and does not, therefore, reflect
any changes in the Company’s short equity exposure.
Copies of all portfolio changes are available, free of charge, from the registered office of the Company.
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1.

NAV per redeemable participating shares (Unaudited)
Ennismore European Smaller Companies Fund
31/12/2017

31/12/2016

31/12/2015

GBP
395,320,718

GBP
365,509,177

GBP
315,465,281

Number of redeemable participating shares in issue:
GBP "A"
GBP "B"
EUR "A"
EUR "B"

1,917,186
991,941
1,234,201
5,770,393

1,909,244
991,941
1,149,507
6,245,414

1,933,254
1,093,828
939,421
6,107,306

Net Asset Value per redeemable participating share
GBP "A"
GBP "B"
EUR "A"
EUR "B"

31/12/2017
GBP 127.69
GBP 21.57
EUR 20.73
EUR 20.79

31/12/2016
GBP 116.52
GBP 19.69
EUR 19.53
EUR 19.59

31/12/2015
GBP 101.80
GBP 17.20
EUR 19.19
EUR 19.26

Net Asset Value per fair value prices

Ennismore Global Equity Fund
31/12/2017
GBP
166,707,169

31/12/2016
GBP
154,635,468

Number of redeemable participating shares in issue:
GBP
GBP "A"
EUR
CHF

2,342,659
3,675,746
9,620,410
1,390,982

1,365,831
3,866,735
9,521,654
1,368,695

Net Asset Value per redeemable participating share
GBP
GBP "A"
EUR
CHF

31/12/2017
GBP 10.74
GBP 10.72
EUR 10.56
CHF 11.22

31/12/2016
GBP 10.60
GBP 10.58
EUR 10.80
CHF 10.65

Net Asset Value per fair value prices

2.

Exchange rates (Unaudited)
The exchange rates used in the annual report for conversion to GBP at 31 December 2017 are:
Australian Dollar
Canadian Dollar
Danish Krone
Euro

1.7295
1.6949
8.3876
1.1265

Hong Kong Dollar
Japanese Yen
Norwegian Krone
Polish Zloty
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10.5749
152.3873
11.0646
4.7005

Swedish Krona
Swiss Franc
Turkish Lira
US Dollar

11.0757
1.3183
5.1291
1.3528

ENNISMORE SMALLER COMPANIES PLC
UNAUDITED NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 December 2017 (continued…)
2.

Exchange rates (Unaudited) (continued)
The exchange rates used in the annual report for conversion to GBP at 31 December 2016 are:
Australian Dollar
Canadian Dollar
Danish Krone
Euro

3.

1.7065
1.6571
8.7108
1.1715

Hong Kong Dollar
Norwegian Krone
Polish Zloty
Swedish Krona

9.5802
10.6361
5.1580
11.2254

Swiss Franc
Turkish Lira
US Dollar

1.2559
4.3465
1.2356

Remuneration Disclosure (Unaudited)
In line with the requirements of the UCITS Regulations, the Company is required to adopt
remuneration policies which are consistent with the principles outlined in the UCITS V Directive.
The remuneration policies are designed to ensure that any relevant conflicts of interest can be
managed appropriately at all times and that the remuneration of its senior staff is in line with the
risk policies and objectives of the Funds it manages. The Remuneration Policy adopted by the
Company in March 2017 applies to “Identified Staff”. Portfolio management is delegated to the
Investment Manager. The Investment Manager's staff are subject to a remuneration code that
complies with the Alternative Investment Fund Managers Directive, details of which are available
on its website www.ennismorefunds.com. The Investment Manager employs three senior managers
(2016: 2) and four portfolio managers (2016: 4) whose activities have a material impact on the risk
profile of the Company. Management and Performance fees totalling £19,171,853 were payable
to the Investment Manager for its services in the year (2016: £18,233,636).
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